
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The City Bridge Trust Committee 

 
Date: THURSDAY, 18 APRIL 2013 

Time: 1.45 pm 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 

Deputy Wendy Mead (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Ken Ayers (Chief Commoner) 
Ray Catt 
Alderman Alison Gowman 
Deputy Revd Stephen Haines 
Alderman Peter Hewitt 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Deputy Edward Lord 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Ian Seaton 
The Rt Hon the Lord Mayor Alderman Roger Gifford (Ex-Officio Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Claire Sherer 

tel. no.: 020 7332 1971 
claire.sherer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served for Members in the Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 

 
Part 1 - Public Agenda 

 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 13 

February 2013. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 10) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 11 - 14) 

 
5. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS 
 To receive a progress report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 15 - 28) 

 
6. GET LONDON WORKING - THE YOUTH OFFER 
 To receive an update report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Decision 

(Circulated separately) 
 

7. GRANT APPLICATIONS 
 To consider the Chief Grants Officer’s reports on grant recommendations as follows:- 

 
 a) Grant Recommendations - Introductory paper  (Pages 29 - 36) 

 



 
 b) Grant Recommendations and Assessments  (Pages 37 - 212) 

 
Annex  

 

Organisation 

 

Recommended 

Grant  

Page 

1 Markfield Project £99,000 39 

2 Misgav £56,500 50 

3 Merton Home Tutoring Service £34,120 60 

4 British Muslims for Secular Democracy £45,000  71 

5 Latin American Women's Aid £96,500 81 

6 St Cuthbert's Centre £46,500  91 

7 Federation of London Youth Clubs 

(London Youth) 

£55,000 101 

8 Age UK Enfield  £97,500 112 

9 Hestia Housing Support £50,000 123 

10 Kingston Centre For  Independent Living £133,000 133 

11 Muscular Dystrophy Campaign £42,500 143 

12 Stroke Association £80,850 154 

13 CREATE London £75,000 165 

14 Pilotlight £51,000 176 

15 Heart of the City £108,000 187 

16 Forum for Health and Wellbeing £58,900 198 

17 City Bridge Trust - Access and 

Sustainability Advisory Service 

£192,900 208 

 
 

 c) Grants Recommended for Rejection  (Pages 213 - 222) 
 
 
 

8. TO CONSIDER REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER AS FOLLOWS:- 
 
 a) Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  (Pages 223 - 226) 

 

 b) Variations to Grants  (Pages 227 - 230) 
 



 c) Grants Approved under Delegated Authority  (Pages 231 - 232) 
 

 d) Reports on Monitoring Visits  (Pages 233 - 236) 
 
 

9. EXPANSION OF CITY CAREERS OPEN HOUSE PROGRAMME 
 Joint report of the Chief Grants Officer and Director of Economic Development. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 237 - 242) 

 
10. CITY BRIDGE TRUST BUSINESS PLAN 2013-16 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 243 - 244) 

 
11. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT 
 
13. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
14. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2013. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 245 - 246) 

 
15. QUINQUENNIAL REVIEW - CONSULTATION FINDINGS 
 Report of the Chief Grants Officer. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 247 - 250) 

 
16. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
17. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 13 February 2013  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the The City Bridge Trust Committee held at Guildhall, 
EC2 on Wednesday, 13 February 2013 at 11.30am 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Billy Dove (Chairman) 
Ray Catt 
Deputy Revd Stephen Haines 
Alderman Peter Hewitt 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Deputy Edward Lord 
Jeremy Mayhew 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
 
In attendance: 
Deputy Catherine McGuinness 
 
 
Officers: 
Gregory Moore - Town Clerk's Department 

Steven Reynolds - Chamberlain's Department 

Jenna Rigley - Chamberlain's Department 

Clare Thomas - Chief Grants Officer, The City Bridge Trust 

Sandra Davidson - The City Bridge Trust 

Jenny Field - The City Bridge Trust 

Stewart Goshawk - The City Bridge Trust 

Jemma Grieve Combes - The City Bridge Trust 

John Merivale - The City Bridge Trust 

Joan Millbank - The City Bridge Trust 

Ciaran Rafferty - The City Bridge Trust 

Tim Wilson - The City Bridge Trust 

Susanna Lascelles - Public Relations Office 

Lauren Scally - Contact Centre 

 
 

Also Present: 
Representatives from the following organisations, whom the Chairman welcomed to 
the meeting, were also present: 

 
• Lord’s Taverners (Item 6.1, Annex 3) 
• Barbican Centre Trust Ltd (Item 6.1, Annex 4) 

 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies for absence were received from Deputy Wendy Mead, Alderman 
Alison Gowman, Michael Henderson-Begg and Ian Seaton. 
 
The Chairman took the opportunity to pay tribute to John Bird, who had 
resigned from the Court of Common Council since the last meeting of the 
Committee. Mr Bird had served on the Committee since its establishment and 
was indeed its first Chairman, and as such it was felt it would be appropriate for 
the Chairman and Chief Grants Officer to write to Mr Bird thanking him for his 
contribution over the years. 
 
It was also noted that this would be Stewart Goshawk’s last meeting, as he 
would shortly be resigning from his contract for general grant-making work with 
the City Bridge Trust. Whilst he would still be working within the Trust’s office 
three days per week managing the Wembley National Stadium Trust, this would 
be his last attendance at this meeting and so the Chairman took the opportunity 
to thank him for all his work in his eighteen years at the Corporation, including 
sixteen working for the Trust. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA  
Jeremy Mayhew declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in respect of the 
application from the Barbican Centre Trust Ltd as a Member of the Barbican 
Centre Board. 
 

3. MINUTES  
The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 10 January 2013 were 
approved. 
 
MATTERS ARISING: 
 

• 1.) Retirement of Chief Grants Officer (p2) – The Chairman expressed 
concern that he had not been involved as much as he would have liked 
in the recruitment of the current Chief Grants Officer’s successor. A 
Member suggested that the matter be raised with the Town Clerk and 
Comptroller & City Solicitor outside the meeting to explore the potential 
for any change to the appointments process and the legalities 
surrounding this. 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ITEMS  

The Committee received a report of the Town Clerk identifying those items 
raised at meetings of the Committee that required further action by officers. 
 
With reference to the application from the Shakespeare Globe Trust, officers 
were asked to try and elicit a revised application one final time, copying in the 
organisation’s Chief Executive to any correspondence. 
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 

Page 2



5. PROGRESS REPORT AND EVENTS  
The Committee received the regular progress report of the Chief Grants Officer 
which highlighted the various activities that were on-going or had recently 
concluded. 
 
The Chairman drew Members’ attention to the confirmation of a date for the 
annual Committee Dinner, which would be held on Friday 21st June at Tower 
Bridge, and also took the opportunity to inform Members that the Trust’s 
Growing Localities Awards ceremony would take place on Thursday 11th April, 
in the Garden Room at the Barbican Centre. Formal invitations for both events 
would of course be circulated in due course. 
 
A Member highlighted access issues at Tower Bridge for those arriving in taxis, 
asking that explicit directions be provided with the invitations to ensure that 
guests were fully aware of how to reach the venue as easily as possible. 
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

6. GRANT APPLICATIONS  
The Committee considered the Grant Applications as follows: 
 
6.1 Introductory Paper  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer, introducing the 
grants programmes and stating that a total of fifty-one applications would be 
dealt with at the meeting, of which one was a strategic initiative, seventeen 
were recommended for grants and nineteen recommended for rejection, with 
nine having been withdrawn. Five grants were also noted as having been 
approved under delegated authority. 
 
A request to carry forward funds remaining in the 2012/13 Working with 
Londoners and Growing Localities to the 2013/14 grants budget was also 
approved, with the Chamberlain advising that the request would go to the 
Resource Allocation Sub-Committee for formal approval. 
 
RESOLVED: That:- 
 

• The contents of the report be noted; 

• Officers be instructed to put formal arrangements in place to carry 
forward the £2,596,473 remaining from the 2012/13 Working with 
Londoners grants budget to financial year 2013/14; and 

• Officers be instructed to put formal arrangements in place to carry 
forward the £233,410 remaining from the 2012/13 Growing Localities 
grants budget to the 2013/14 general grants budget. 

 
6.2 Grant Recommendations and Assessments  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer recommending 
grants to organisations. 
 
During consideration of the applications before the Committee, the following 
comments were made by Members of the Committee and relevant officers: 

Page 3



• The Chairman reminded Members of the distinction between the 
Barbican Centre and the Barbican Centre Trust Ltd at Annex 4 (Barbican 
Centre Trust Ltd), and made clear that the funding was for a third and 
final year of a grant. The Chief Grants Officer noted that it would be 
sensible to further clarify the definition of “exceptional grants” as part of 
the quinquennial review to avoid any potential confusion in future.  

• In response to a Member’s comment at Annex 8 (London Orchard 
Project Ltd) concerning the Lord Mayor’s interest in this area, the Chief 
Grants Officer undertook to explore the possibility of a cheque 
presentation ceremony being arranged to take place at the Mansion 
House. 

• With regard to the application at Annex 15 (Green Alliance), a Member 
noted that this was the second successive year that funding had been 
sought and asked officers to ensure the applicant did not become 
dependent on the Trust’s funding. Officers undertook to pass on the 
message but gave assurances that there was no danger of the 
organisation becoming reliant on funding from the Trust given the wide 
range of funders already involved and their knowledge that Trust funding 
was limited to a maximum of three years. 

• Members were supportive of the Strategic Initiative proposed at Annex 
18 (Institute for Public Policy Research), citing their concerns over the 
issue of payday loans and some of the seemingly extortionate interest 
rates charged to some of society’s most vulnerable people. The Chief 
Grants Officer advised that this research would mesh well with other 
campaigns being undertaken in the field as the IPPR were very well 
connected in this area.  

• It was noted that the IPPR had been identified as the preferred think-
tank for this research given their emphasis on solutions, which had been 
apparent in the work they had previously done for the Trust concerning 
elderly people, which had provided a number of concrete 
recommendations. A Member commented that the Policy & Resources 
Committee were keen to be able to maintain an holistic overview of all 
those think-tanks funded by the Corporation to ensure effective 
monitoring, and asked that news of this funding be fed back to that 
Committee accordingly. 

 
RESOLVED: That the following grants be approved:- 
 
Annex  

Number 

Organisation 

(and Borough 

that Benefits) 

 

Grant Approved 

Category: Accessible London 

1. Zoological Society of 

London 

(London-wide) 

£50,000 towards the capital costs of 

providing access facilities at Tiger 

Territory. 

 

 

Page 4



Category: Bridging Communities 

2. 

 

Aston-Mansfield 

(Newham) 

£32,350 over two years (£16,450; 

£15,900) for a part-time (2dpw) 

Outreach Worker and running costs to 

engage minority organisations in 

Newham ESOL Exchange, improving 

access to ESOL and gathering 

evidence of need and provision to 

inform ongoing delivery.   

3. Lord’s Taverners 

(Lambeth, Croydon, 

Kensington & Chelsea) 

£54,250 over three years (£18,500; 

£18,000; £17,750) towards a girls’ and 

young women’s sports and leadership 

project in three London boroughs. 

 

Category: Exceptional 

4. Barbican Centre Trust 

Limited 

(Several East London 

Boroughs) 

£250,000 towards Creative Learning 

projects in East London, building on the 

work supported by The City Bridge 

Trust between 2011 and 2013, 

conditional on BCT raising the balance 

of funds from other sources. 

 

Category: Growing Localities – Growing and Greening 

5. 

 

 

The Centre for 

Environmental Initiatives  

(Croydon, Sutton, and 

Wandsworth) 

£49,100 over two years (£24,300; 

£24,800) towards the salary and project 

costs required to develop seven local 

community food growing gardens. 

 

6. Core Arts  

(Hackney and Newham) 

£42,600 over two years (2 x £21,300) 

towards the salary and running costs of 

“Greening the Grey.” 

7. 

 

 

 

Groundwork Thames 

Valley 

(Hounslow and 

Hillingdon) 

£45,000 over two years (2 x £22,500) 

towards the salaries and project on-

costs associated with establishing 12 

community growing spaces in 

Hillingdon and Hounslow. 

8. London Orchard Project 

Ltd 

(London-wide) 

£49,510 (£23,950; £25,560) towards 

the costs of a part-time project 

coordinator and project costs required 

to set up and run Growing Localities 

Orchard Workshops. 

9. Myatt’s Fields Park 

Project 

£50,000 over two years (£24,000; 

£26,000) for the salary of a part-time 

Page 5



(Lambeth and 

Southwark) 

(21hpw) Community Gardner and 

towards running costs to develop and 

sustain local food growing projects in 

north Lambeth and Southwark, subject 

to the Trust not being the largest single 

funder in Year 2, and receipt of 

independently examined and 

satisfactory financial statements for the 

year ended 31 July 2012. 

10. Spitalfields City Farm 

(Tower Hamlets) 

 

£50,000 over two years (2 x £25,000) 

for the salaries of two part-time 

Community Gardeners and project 

costs to support local community 

organisations in gardening and food 

growing skills.  

 

Category: Improving Londoners’ Mental Health 

11. 

 

 

Catholic Children’s 

Society (Westminster) 

(Haringey, Barnet, 

Enfield and Brent) 

£105,000 over three years (£45,000; 

£35,000; £25,000) towards the costs of 

a full-time Systemic Family 

Psychotherapist at the Bishop Harvey 

Family Service on the condition that the 

charity raises the balance of funding 

from other sources. 

 

12. Hackney Bereavement 

Service 

(Hackney) 

£45,000 over three years (3 x £15,000) 

to meet the salary and associated 

project costs to expand and develop 

work with older people aged 80+. 

13. Maytree Respite Centre 

Ltd 

(London-wide) 

£120,000 over three years (3 x 

£40,000) towards the respite centre’s 

outreach and support for suicidal 

people in despair. 

 

Category: London’s Environment 

14. EcoActive Education 

Services 

(Several London 

boroughs) 

£84,000 over three years (£27,440; 

£28,000; £28,560) towards the salary 

and on-costs of a Senior Education 

Officer to deliver a whole-school and 

community project to prevent food, 

energy and packaging waste in north 

London. 

15. Green Alliance £55,100 for a second year’s work 

Page 6



(London-wide) towards the salaries of the policy 

adviser and deputy director, and 

associated costs, to address green 

living in London’s tower blocks, to 

develop practical support for 

Londoners, and to influence decision 

makers. The grant is conditional upon a 

satisfactory monitoring and evaluation 

report on the previous grant. 

16. Octopus Community 

Network 

(Islington) 

£78,400 over two years (2 x £39,200) 

for the salary of two part-time (2dpw 

and 3dpw) Development Officers to 

deliver the Wild Places project subject 

to The City Bridge Trust not being the 

organisation’s single largest funder and 

on additional project funding (at least 

£19,300pa) being secured. 

17. One20 (TimeBank) 

(London-wide) 

£80,000 over two years (2 x £40,000) 

for a Project Coordinator (0.8 FTE) and 

Programme Manager (0.2 FTE) plus 

delivery costs for two further and final 

years of Leaders Together. 

18. Strategic Initiative: 

Payday Loans (Institute 

for Public Policy 

Research) 

(London-wide) 

Up to £50,000 to engage the IPPR to 

undertake the London element of a 

study into pay day loans and the 

availability of affordable credit for 

people in financial need; the funds to 

be made available from monies already 

approved for work on the Quinquennial 

Review and the Sharing Learning and 

Knowledge strategy. 

 
6.3 Grants Recommended for Rejection  
The Committee considered a report of the Chief Grants Officer recommending 
nineteen grant applications in the Working with Londoners programme be 
rejected for the reasons identified in the schedule attached to the report. 
 
RESOLVED: That the grant applications detailed in the schedule attached to 
the report be rejected. 
 

7. REPORTS OF THE CHIEF GRANTS OFFICER  
The Committee considered the reports of the Chief Grants Officer as follows: 
 
 
 

Page 7



7.1 Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer detailing nine 
applications that had been withdrawn. 
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
7.2 Variations to Grants  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer advising Members 
of variations to four grants agreed by the Chief Grants Officer since the last 
meeting of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
7.3 Grants Approved Under Delegated Authority  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer advising Members 
of five grants, totalling £99,810, which had been approved under delegated 
authority since the last meeting of the Committee as follows: 
 

• Kazzum - £19,300 for a third and final year towards Kazzum's Pathways 
project for young migrants and refugees on condition of receipt of a 
satisfactory monitoring report for year two of the current award. 

• West & North West London Vietnamese Association - £24,850 over two 
years (£12,425; £12,425) towards the costs of the coordinator, tutor and 
project on-costs for the ESOL project. 

• Federation of City Farms & Community Gardens - £11,900 for the 
provision of 10 training courses over two years (2 x £2,950) and the 
printing, distribution and launch of the London Map (£6,000). 

• Forest Farm Peace Garden - £19,760 over two years (£9,800; £9,960) 
towards the Bridge Worker's salary (10.5 hours per week) and 
associated project costs. 

• Community Cancer Centre - £24,000 over two years (2 x £12,000) 
towards the costs of providing information and support to cancer patients 
and their carers. 

 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
7.4 Reports on Monitoring Visits  
 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer relative to two 
visits that had been undertaken.  
 
RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

8. SOCIAL INVESTMENT ADVISOR - REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF ROLE  
The Committee considered a joint report of the Director of Economic 
Development and the Chief Grants Officer concerning the proposed extension 
of the Social Investment Consultant role to 31 March 2014. 

Page 8



RESOLVED: That the following be approved:- 
 

• a contribution of up to £50,000 to fund 50% of a dedicated Social 
Investment role and associated costs, subject to the City Bridge Trust 
Committee agreeing to fund the balance and that the contribution be met 
from the Policy Initiatives Fund for 2013/14 and charged to City’s Cash 
(categorised under the “Communities” heading);  

• a variation of the consultancy contract to facilitate an extension to 31 
March 2014; and, 

• the City's Procurement Regulations relating to tender thresholds for the 
consultant be waived to facilitate the extension of the contract. 

 
9. GROWING LOCALITIES AWARDS UPDATE  

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer providing an 
update on the Growing Localities programme. 
 
RECEIVED. 
 

10. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS TO BE 
URGENT  
There were no urgent items. 
 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED: That under Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:- 
 

Item Nos.      Exempt Paragraphs 
 13 - 14        3 
  

 
Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 

 
13. MONITORING & EVALUATION REPORT (JULY 2008 - MARCH 2012)  

The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer updating Members 
on the monitoring and evaluation of grants awarded under the “Working with 
Londoners” programmes which were launched in July 2008. 
 
 

14. QUINQUENNIAL REVIEW - PROGRESS REPORT  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Grants Officer updating Members 
on progress made with the quinquennial review and reporting on actions arising 
from the strategic workshop meeting of 16 November 2012. 
 

Page 9



15. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There was one question. 
 

16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were two urgent items. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12.20pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Gregory Moore 
tel. no.: 020 7332 3113 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 10



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust 18 February 2013 

Subject: 

Outstanding Actions 

Public 

Report of: 

Town Clerk 

For Information  

 
Summary  

 
This report identifies those items raised at meetings of the City Bridge Trust 
Committee requiring further action by officers. The intention is to allow 
Members to track more easily progress made and record which outstanding 
actions have been dealt with. 
 
Those items which have arisen in the present financial year have been 
highlighted in the annex attached to the report.  
 
Members are asked to note the progress made to date. 

 
 
Recommendation: 
Members are asked to note the contents of this report. 

 

 
 

Contact: 
Claire Sherer 
Committee & Member Services Officer  
claire.sherer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
020 7332 1971 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



The City Bridge Trust Committee – Outstanding Actions 
 

 

 

 
Item 

 

 
Action 

Officer 
responsible 

 
Progress to date 

5. Retirement of 
Chief Grants 
Officer 

Raise the Chairman’s concerns that he had not been involved in the 
recruitment of the current Chief Grants Officer’s successor with the 
Town Clerk and Comptroller & City Solicitor to explore the potential 
for any change to the appointments process and the legalities 
surrounding this. 

Town Clerk / Chief 
Grants Officer 

Information awaited. 

6. London 
Orchard Project 
Ltd 

Explore the possibility of a cheque presentation ceremony being 
arranged to take place at the Mansion House. 

Chief Grants Officer Information awaited. 

7. Strategic 
Initiative – Pay 
Day Loans and 
their Impact on 
poverty 

Advise the Directors of PRO and EDO of this initiative so that they 
can maintain a holistic overview of all those think-tanks funded by the 
Corporation. 

Chief Grants Officer Completed. 

Outstanding Grant Conditions: CBT Committee – 17/01/13 

Annex 1 – Cricket 
for Change 

Grant approved “subject to the receipt of satisfactory signed audited 
accounts for 2011/12”. 

Chief Grants Officer 
/ Chamberlain 

Information awaited. 

Annex 12 – 
Camden Carers  

Grant approved “subject to receipt of signed accounts for 2011/12”. Chief Grants Officer 
/ Chamberlain 

Information awaited. 

Annex 14 – 
Hackney 
Caribbean Elders  

Grant approved “subject to sight of a satisfactory organisational 
budget for the financial year 2013-14”. 

Chief Grants Officer 
/ Chamberlain  

Information awaited. 

Outstanding Grant Conditions (Item 6): CBT Committee – 13/02/2013 

Annex 9 
Myatt’s Fields 
Park Project 

Grant approved “subject to the Trust not being the largest single 
funder in Year 2, and receipt of independently examined and 
satisfactory financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2012.” 

Chief Grants Officer 
/ Chamberlain  

Information awaited. 

P
age 13



P
age 14

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date: 

The City Bridge Trust  18 April 2013 

 

Subject: 

Progress Report 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

Summary  

 

This is a regular Progress Report by the Chief Grants Officer. 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 

Main Report 

1.0 Work in Progress 

 

1.1 Your officers have worked hard to progress the 31 applications which 
 have been received in response to “Get Young People Working – The 

 Youth Offer”. In today’s papers you will be receiving 25 summaries of 
 each  application, with the remaining 6 to be brought to your meeting in 

 May or June. 

 

1.2 Officers have also been developing the draft of your new grants 

 programmes and have completed the analysis of the online consultation. 

 So as not to overburden Members with volumes of paperwork today, 

 your officers will bring the draft programmes to your meeting in June. 

 Today you will receive a paper “Quinquennial Review Consultation 

 Findings”, which summarises the main issues and findings for you to 

 note. 

 

2.0 Awards Ceremonies 

 

2.1 Beacon Fellowship Awards 2013 

 The Beacon Fellowship Awards 2013 were held at Mansion House on 6th 

February 2013, hosted by the Lord Mayor, who acknowledged City Bridge 

Trust’s contribution in advancing philanthropy.  You may recall that you 

are funding a new category of award, that of the Beacon Award for City 

Philanthropy as part of your City Philanthropy – a wealth of opportunity 

initiative.  Winners in this category were ex-Man Group and former 

Goldman Sachs, Prudential and Heart of the City Chairman Harvey 

McGrath; entrepreneur John Stone who made his wealth in insurance; 
and a group of nine young professionals from a number of City firms who 

Agenda Item 5

Page 15



together founded the Young Philanthropy Syndicate (Michael Harris, 

Adam Pike, Sam Cohen, Alex Dwek, Alex Gardner, Paul Gorrie, Niccolo 

Manzoni, Jack Prevezer and Conor Quinn).  You are also funding Young 

Philanthropy as part of the City Philanthropy initiative. 

 

2.2 Sustainable City Awards 

The Sustainable City Awards were held at Mansion House on 19th March.  

The Trust continued its collaboration with the Worshipful Company of 

Pattenmakers, running the category of Greening the Third Sector.  This 

rewards voluntary and community organisations that do not have the 

environment as their main focus but which have nevertheless made 

significant improvements in reducing their carbon footprint.  Deputy 

Mead and Deputy Ayers represented the Trust on the judging panel, 

together with two of the Pattenmakers.  This year’s winner was Thrifty 

Couture, a social enterprise that trains ex-offenders to turn unwanted 

clothing into fashion garments at affordable prices. 

 

2.3 You may be interested to learn that Scope, a disability charity, which you 
fund, won the Sustainable Finance Category for its Scope Bond 

Programme to grow its income generating activities in order to enable it 

to expand its services for disabled people. 

 
2.4 Growing Localities Awards 

 Your officers are finalising the details for the launch of your latest edition 
of The Knowledge - Learning from London.  This is entitled ‘The Growing 

Localities Awards’. This edition will showcase some of the work of 

applicants to the Growing Localities Awards scheme.  You may recall that 

you are supporting the Awards scheme, as part of the Growing Localities 
initiative, in partnership with Lemos and Crane. A judging panel 

comprising the Chairman of City Bridge Trust, Martin Rodman of Open 
Spaces, the Chief Grants Officer and your officer Sandra Davidson 

selected the winners and runners-up as well as two Judges’ special prizes 

in each of the five award categories from gardening and growing food to 

reclaiming and developing wasteland.   

  

2.5 The purpose of the event on 11th April at the Barbican Centre is to 

recognise and celebrate the very best of ‘greening and growing’ 

initiatives from non-profit organisations large and small.   

  

3.0 ShareAction (formerly FairPensions) Annual Lecture  

  

3.1 In 2010, you approved a grant of £37,734 over three years, to 

 ShareAction (formerly FairPensions), to part-fund the salary of a Director 

of Investor Engagement, to support the environmental education of 

shareholders and thereby improve London’s global environmental impact.  

 

3.2 ShareAction approached the Trust and the Remembrancer’s Department, 

 to see if the City of London Corporation would be willing to host its 
 Annual Lecture. This took place at Guildhall, on 18th March. The former 

Page 16



 US Vice-President, Al Gore, spoke on the theme “A Call to Action: 

 Harnessing  Capital Markets for a Sustainable World”. 

 

3.2 Al Gore began his talk by acknowledging the proven strengths of 

Capitalism as the best system yet devised for promoting human 

wellbeing.  He then went on to elaborate, however, on where Capitalism 

currently falls short in practice – noting, for instance, that the original 

developer of GDP, Simon Kuznets, specifically warned against its use as 

a measure of welfare.  For all its benefits, Capitalism fails to account for 

“externalities” such as pollution, the extreme adverse effects on the 

poor, or the urgent crisis of human-induced climate disruption – the 

scientific consensus on which is now “pretty much akin to the consensus 

around the law of gravity”.  The solution to these ills, Mr Gore 

maintained, lies in that other great system at our disposal, namely 

Democracy.  A better informed Civil Society will be able to turn 

Capitalism to the advantage of ourselves and the natural systems on 

which we depend.  He commended ShareAction for coming up with the 

tools to enable ordinary citizens to understand how their investments are 
managed, and for their pioneering work in shareholder engagement. The 

Lecture was very well received. 

 

3.3 The Chairman and Chief Grants Officer later attended a private dinner 
hosted by the Lord Mayor Locum Tenens, Alderman David Howard, in the 

Chief Commoner’s Parlour, where the conversation continued. 
 

4.0 Media Work  

 

 City Philanthropy - a wealth of opportunity 

 
4.1 As stated in paragraph 3.1 of this report, the 8th Beacon Fellowship 

Awards were held at Mansion House on 6th February 2013, hosted by the 

Lord Mayor.  As the principal sponsor of the awards, JP Morgan led on 

the press work announcing the winners.  However, Champollion 

promoted the press release to trade and specialist press. 

 

4.2 The Lord Mayor gave an interview on Radio 4’s Today programme the 

next morning which has an audience of approximately £1m listeners. 

 

4.3 An article on philanthropic activity in the City was published in the 

February edition of Civil Society which referred to the Trust and your City 

Philanthropy activities.  It can be found here: 

http://www.civilsociety.co.uk/fundraising/news/content/14365/whats_in

_februarys_fundraising_magazine 

 

4.4 An interview with the Lord Mayor was published in the Sunday Express 

on 31st March 2013.  It refers to the City Bridge Trust and to some of the 

work being undertaken under the City Philanthropy banner and it can be 

viewed here: 

Page 17



http://www.express.co.uk/finance/personalfinance/388293/Square-Mile-

is-still-a-safe-haven 

 

 Growing Localities 

 

4.5 Press releases on several of the grants awarded on the horticultural 

training strand of Growing Localities, acknowledging the support of the 

City of London Corporation and the Trust, have appeared in a number of 

local press outlets, as set out in the table below: 

 

 

Organisation Press 

Trees for Cities South London Press 

St Mungo’s  Haringey Independent 

St Mary’s Secret Garden Hackney Gazette 

Green Corridor Ealing & Acton Gazette 

Otesha Project Hackney Gazette 

 
 Working with Londoners 

 

4.6 Civil Society magazine published an article by Tim Wilson on 28th 

February.  Giving in turbulent times talked about how the Trust, with a 
rich history rooted in medieval times, approaches giving in modern 

times. The article was based on a talk given by Tim at Gresham College 
last autumn.  

 

4.7 An article by Sandra Davidson entitled My Week was published in the 
20th March edition of Third Sector magazine.  This provided an 

opportunity to promote the work of the Trust through the lens of an 
officer’s typical working week.  The article can be found here 

http://www.thirdsector.co.uk/Fundraising/article/1174813/ 

 

4.8 Local and trade press coverage has been obtained as set out below: 
 

Organisation Grant Press 

Timebank £80,000 over 2 years towards 

a programme matching skilled 

volunteers with small 

charities.  

Charity News 

Hackney 

Caribbean 

Elderly 

Organisation 

£53,150 over 3 years towards 

a project addressing dementia 

amongst African-Caribbean 

elders. 

Hackney 

Gazette, 

Islington Gazette 

Hackney Quest £120,000 over 3 years 

towards a volunteering 

programme. 

Hackney 

Gazette, 

Islington Gazette 

London 

Migration 

Museum 

£50,000 over 2 years towards 

an education programme. 

Museums Journal 

Page 18



 

 Social Media 

 

4.9 Champollion has continued to work with your officers help support them 

in making increased use of Twitter and other social media.   

 

4.10 As reported last month, Champollion has developed a microsite, ‘Parklife 

London’, for Growing Localities that acts as a map-based listing service 

of green spaces in London, that also enables your grantees to promote 

their work and volunteering opportunities to the general public.  Visitors 

are able to submit their own organisation’s event listings and 

volunteering opportunities. 

 

4.11 The microsite was ‘soft-launched’ during half-term week in February.  

Over the past month it has received 1,837 pageviews, 58% of which are 

new visitors.  The level of engagement has been relatively high, with the 

average visit lasting for 4 minutes. 

 
4.12 Time Out magazine published an online piece about the Parklife London 

website. The article can be found here:  

  

 http://now-here-this.timeout.com/2013/03/31/park-it-londons-hidden-green-spaces 
 

4.13 Officers from the Trust and Open Spaces, together with Champollion, 

have met with Greenspace Information Greater London (GIGL) to explore 
the possibility of data sharing in order to build the content of Parklife 

London. 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 

020 7332 3713 

clare.thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Report written: 3rd April 2013              

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



  THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST  

 

Professional Development Events, Conferences and Seminars  
Attended 29TH January to 2nd April 2013 

 
Date 
 

Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 
Representative 

Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
 

05/02/13 Fine Cell Work Monitoring 
Visit 

Deputy Joyce 
Nash; 
Deputy Chief 
Grants Officer 

Wandsworth 
Prison 

Fine Cell Work uses trained volunteers to 
teach needlework to serving prisoners – 
75% of them men. It was both an 
interesting and a valuable visit to be able to 
actually talk to both the volunteers and the 
prisoners who had opted to join this group. 

06/02/13 Beacon 
Fellowship 
Charitable Trust 

Beacon Awards The Chairman; 
Several Members; 
Chief Grants 
Officer; 
Deputy Chief 
Grants officer 

Mansion House Please see the Chief Grants Officer’s 
Progress Report for details. 

11/02/13 Foundations 
Forum 

Meeting Chief Grants Officer Royal 
Institution of 
Great Britain, 
London W1 

A regular meeting of trusts and 
foundations. The guest speaker was 
Campbell Robb, CEO of Shelter England.  

18/02/13 Just Fair Lecture Chief Grants Officer Doughty Street 
Chambers, 
London WC1 

A lecture on the topic of ‘Freedom from 
Hunger: Realising the Right to Food in the 
UK’, Chaired by Baroness Ruth Lister 
(Parliamentary Joint Committee on Human 
Rights and Patron of Just Fair). 

20/02/13 Trust for London Meeting Chief Grants Officer Resource for 
London, 
Holloway Road, 
London N7 

The Chief Grants Officer was invited to visit 
Resource for London to see their progress 
over the last 18 months and to discuss 
opportunities for joint working and funding. 

21/02/13 City of London 
Corporation 

Meeting Chief Grants Officer Guildhall A meeting to discuss impact measurement 
of the Lord Mayor’s Appeal. 

P
age 21



21/02/13 Mayor’s Fund for 
London 

Meeting Chief Grants Officer Guildhall A meeting to discuss numeracy and the 
possibility of joint working. 

23/02/13 
 

London Funders Meeting Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

Euston Members’ meeting on monitoring and 
evaluation issues for funders with 
presentations from the Big Lottery Fund 
and Charities Evaluation Services. 

05/03/13 Cranfield Trust Reception Chief Grants Officer Salters’ Hall Networking reception in the presence of 
HRH The Princess Royal, Patron of The 
Cranfield Trust, to hear about recent 
developments and meet other supporters. 

07/03/13 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Chairs’ 
Reception 

The Chairman Royal Society 
for the Arts,  
London WC2 

A lecture and reception for Chairmen of 
charitable foundations. Lord Hodgson 
addressed the gathering about his recent 
report and the event was chaired by a 
former member of CBT staff, Sara Llewellin. 

08/03/13 Association of 
Charitable 
Foundations 

Seminar Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Euston A seminar for funders with a common 
interest in gathering better impact evidence 
from grantees 

12/03/13 New Philanthropy 
Capital 

Event Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

Bankside 
Community 
Space 

Launch of a blueprint for shared 
measurement in the voluntary sector as 
part of the Inspiring Impact programme. 

18/03/13 London Funders Event Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer; Jemma 
Grieve Combes, 
Grants Officer 

Blackfriars Event to reflect on issues in funding the 
VCS in London in 2013.  Officers took part 
in roundtable discussions on voluntary 
sector infrastructure support and advice 
providers. 

19/03/13 London Funders Seminar Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer; Jemma 
Grieve Combes, 
Grants Officer 

Euston Seminar to discuss trends in the level and 
quality of applications to London’s funders. 

19/03/13 City of London 
Corporation 

Sustainable 
City Awards 

Several Members; 
Sandra Davidson, 
Grants Officer; 
Cheryl Belmont, 
Executive Assistant 

Mansion House Please see Chief Grants Officer’s Progress 
Report for details. 

P
age 22



25/03/13 Pesticide Action Monitoring visit Alderman Alison 
Gowman; 
Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 
 

EC2 The formal report of this visit is presented 
elsewhere in your papers today. 

27/03/13 Triangle Arts 
Trust 

Monitoring visit Jeremy Mayhew; 
Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Oval You are funding Triangle Arts’ Even Better 
Together community arts programme, 
bringing different communities together.  
The visit provided an enjoyable opportunity 
to participate in a workshop and see first-
hand how the creative arts can enable the 
sharing of different cultural perspectives to 
foster greater cross-cultural understanding. 

27/02/13 All Change Arts Conference Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer; Anita 
Williams, Payments 
Officer 

Sadler’s Wells 
Theatre 

A half-day conference on the work of All 
Change Arts in assisting family 
relationships in Islington (which you funded 
under your Tackling Violence programme). 
The event was attended by over 50 people. 

12/03/13 DiVA Seminar Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Channel 4, 
Horseferry Rd 

A presentation by DiVA – an organisation 
which delivers accredited training to 
apprentices in the creative industries. 

14/03/13 LB Islington Seminar Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Islington Town 
Hall 

An event hosted by LBI Arts Department to 
garner interest amongst local arts 
organisations in applying for Arts Council 
funding for apprenticeships. 

27/03/13 Tricycle Theatre Performance of 
Minding the 
Gap 

Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Tricycle 
Theatre, 
Kilburn 

You are funding a project called Minding 
the Gap whereby the Tricycle Theatre uses 
arts and drama techniques to support the 
inclusion of young refugees who have 
limited or no English language skills. Their 
performance, in front of some of their 
teachers, was very uplifting. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 23



 
 
 

General Events and Receptions  
Attended 29th January to 2nd April 2013 

 
Date Organisation Type of Event City of London’s 

Representative 
Location/ 
Borough 

Summary Comments 
  

29/01/13 The Stroke 
Association 

Reception The Chairman The Ritz Hotel A reception to mark the launch of the 
Stroke Association’s new project, “Back 
to Work”, targeted at young people who 
have suffered a stroke. 

05/02/13 Calouste 
Gulbenkian 
Foundation 

Dinner Chief Grants Officer Hoxton Square, 
London N1 

A dinner for members of trusts and 
foundations supporting the arts; to 
explore common interests. 

07/02/13 Natural History 
Museum 

Reception Chief Grants Officer Natural History 
Museum 

A reception, in the presence of Sir David 
Attenborough, to mark the opening of 
“Extinction”, an exhibition focussing on 
conservation. 

12/02/13 Big Society 
Capital 

Reception Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Deutsche Bank 
(London Wall) 

An evening reception for organisations 
interested in social investment to launch 
the publication of “The Good Investor” 
 

13/02/13 The Garden 
Museum 

VIP Visit Mrs Littlechild Lambeth, 
London SE1 

A visit in the presence of HRH The 
Duchess of Cornwall, to precede the 
Floriculture exhibition (please see next 
item). 

14/02/13 The Garden 
Museum 

Reception The Chairman Lambeth, 
London SE1 

A private viewing of Floriculture, Flowers, 
Love and Money; an exhibition of art 
about horticulture. 

26/02/13 Charterhouse Lunch The Chairman Charterhouse The Chairman was invited to a tour and 
lunch at the Charterhouse to discuss the 
forthcoming exhibition on Philanthropy. 
The Chairman was pleased to renew 
acquaintance with this historic 
organisation. 

P
age 24



26/02/13 City of London 
Corporation 

Dinner The Chairman; 
Chief Grants 
Officer; Tim 
Wilson, Principal 
Grants Officer 

Haberdashers’ 
Hall 

The Chairman of the Investment 
Committee invited the Chairman, the 
Chief Grants Officer and the Principal 
Grants Officer to his Committee’s Dinner, 
with guest speaker Lord Mawson OBE. 

27/02/13 City of London 
Corporation 

Senior 
Managers’ 
Forum 

Chief Grants Officer Mansion House To hear from the Chairman of the Policy 
& Resources Committee and the Town 
Clerk, on the City of London Corporation’s 
plans and priorities for the year ahead; 
as well as an update on corporate-wide 
issues and on the financial situation. 

27/02/13 Reform Dinner Chief Grants Officer Guildhall A Dinner with the Minister for Civil 
Society in partnership with think tank 
Reform and hosted by the Chairman of 
the Policy & Resources Committee, to 
discuss the Big Society Agenda and Social 
Investment. 

05/03/13 The Stroke 
Association 

Reception The Chairman Lord and Lady 
Fink’s home, 
N1. 

A reception hosted by Lord and Lady Fink 
to mark the changeover of Chairman of 
the Stroke Association. 

28/03/13 Domestic 
Violence 
Intervention 
Project 

Reception Jemma Grieve 
Combes, Grants 
Officer 

Africa Centre, 
Covent Garden 

Reception to celebrate the 21st birthday 
of the Domestic Violence Intervention 
Project. 

06/03/13 City of London 
Corporation 

Dinner Chief Grants Officer Guildhall The Chairman of the Policy & Resources 
Committee invited the Chief Grants 
Officer to his Committee’s Dinner, with 
guest speaker The Rt Hon Greg Clark MP, 
Financial Secretary to the Treasury. 

08/03/13 City of London 
Corporation 

Breakfast Chief Grants Officer Guildhall Breakfast for International Women’s Day, 
Chaired by Janet Ellis, presenter, actress 
and Patron of Refuge; to acknowledge 
women’s success and contribution to the 
workplace and to society. 

P
age 25



13/03/13 Jewish Care Breakfast The Chairman Mandarin Hotel A breakfast for patrons. The Speaker of 
the House of Commons, John Bercow, 
addressed the group. CBT were thanked 
for our help with their work for 
Alzheimer’s sufferers. 

14/03/13 Connaught 
Opera 

Concert The Chairman The British 
Hospital for 
Incurables 

Connaught Opera entertained the 
patients, their relatives and friends. 

18/03/13 ShareAction 
(formerly 
FairPensions)  

Lecture and 
reception 

The Chairman, 
several Members 
and City Bridge 
Trust officers 

Guildhall Please see the Chief Grants Officer’s 
Progress Report for details. 

19/03/13 Westminster 
House Youth 
Club 

Reception Sandra Davidson, 
Grants Officer; 
Cheryl Belmont 
Executive Assistant 

Girdlers’ Hall A fundraising event to celebrate the 
Youth Club’s 125th Anniversary. The 
event provided an opportunity to talk to 
some of the young people and to hear 
more about the Youth Club’s work. 

20/03/13 Zoological 
Society of 
London 

Reception The Chairman; 
Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

London Zoo Reception to mark the opening of new 
Tiger Territory, where a CBT grant has 
helped to provide disabled access, giving 
disabled people a better view of the 
tigers. The Chairman was presented to 
HRH The Duke of Edinburgh, who opened 
the new facility. 

21/03/13 St Peter de 
Beauvoir 

‘Open House’ Sandra Davidson, 
Grants Officer 

The Crypt, St 
Peter’s Church 

An ‘Open House’ event to celebrate the 
opening of the new, fully accessible 
community space which the Crypt has 
become, partly-funded by CBT; and to 
launch St Peter’s Community Partnership. 

22/03/13 The Barrow 
Cadbury Trust 

Reception The Chairman; 
Tim Wilson, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Church House A reception to mark the publication of “A 
History of the Barrow Cadbury Trust”   

25/03/13 Duke of 
Edinburgh’s 
Award 

Reception The Chairman St James’s 
Palace 

A reception for supporters of the Duke of 
Edinburgh’s Award. The Chairman was 
presented to HRH the Earl of Wessex. 

P
age 26



13/02/13 Chinese 
Association 
Tower Hamlets 

Reception Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer; Sandra 
Davidson, Grants 
Officer 

Canary Wharf Reception to celebrate the 30th 
anniversary of this organisation which 
you are currently supporting. 

05/03/13 Action for 
Stammering 
Children 

Reception Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer 

Speaker’s 
House, Palace 
of Westminster 

An event to celebrate the 20th 
anniversary of the Michael Palin Centre.  

21/03/13 Rambert Dance Showcase Ciaran Rafferty, 
Principal Grants 
Officer; Ibrahim 
Hussein, Clerical 
Assistant 

Queen 
Elizabeth Hall, 
South Bank 

An event to showcase Rambert’s 
community programme, with 15 schools 
admirably displaying their dance skills. 

 

P
age 27



P
age 28

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee(s): Date(s): 

City Bridge Trust 18 April 2013 

Subject: 

Grant Recommendations - Introductory Paper 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

Ward (if appropriate): N/A 

 

Summary  
 

This report deals with recommendations relating to applications 

received on your current grants programmes.  

A total of 67 Working with Londoners applications will be dealt 

with at this meeting.  Of these, one is a Strategic Initiative, 16 

are recommended for a grant, 29 are recommended for 
rejection, and 11 have been withdrawn.  10 grants are also 

noted as having been recommended under delegated authority.  

The total recommended sum is £1,430,095.  25 applications are 
also recommended for funding under the “Get Young People 

Working – The Youth Offer” programme for a total 
recommended amount of £2,599,123. 

   

Recommendations 

That you: 

a)  note the contents of the report 

b)  consider the individual grant recommendations in relation to 

the applications set out in the summary schedule and other papers 

 

Main Report  

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 This paper summarises the action taken on grant applications 

received, and tracks spend on your grant making at each 

Committee meeting for the current financial year.  Sections 2 to 5 

deal with your Working with Londoners programme including 

applications, Strategic Initiatives and Eco-audits and 

revocations/writebacks.  Section 6 deals separately with one-off 

additional programmes funded from surplus income within Bridge 

House Estates.  A summary of overall spend against your current 

year grants budget is provided at the end of this report. 

  

Agenda Item 7a

Page 29



1.2 Your policy guidance is presented in a loose-leaf folder entitled 

“Members’ Handbook”.  It includes the priorities and exclusions that 

were ratified for the Trust by the Court of Common Council, in April 

2008.  It is also available on the intranet. 

 

2.0 Working with Londoners  
 

2.1  In the period 1st July 2012 to 30th September 2012, 101 

applications were received.  Of these, five are recommended for a 

grant today, one has been recommended for a grant under 

delegated authority, two are recommended for rejection and three 

have been withdrawn, leaving four pending. 

 

Table 1: Applications received 1st July – 30th September 2012 

 

  

Committee Date 

Jul 12 Sep 12 Oct 12 Nov 12 Jan 13 Feb 13 Apr 13 Total 

Strategic 

Initiatives 

1 1           2 

Grants / Recs    1 4 8 12 7 5 37 

Delegated Gr   2     1   1 4 

Rejs/Recs   6 20 3 4 5 2 40 

Withdrawn    2 1 2 3 3 3 14 

Lapsed               0 

Pending  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 4 4 

TOTAL  1 12 25 13 20 15 15 101 

 

2.2 In the period 1st October 2012 to 31st December 2012, 103 

applications were received.  Of these, nine are recommended for a 

grant today, two have been recommended for a grant under 

delegated authority, 14 are recommended for rejection and five 

have been withdrawn, leaving 25 pending.  

 

Table 2: Applications received 1st October – 31st December 

2012 

 

  

Committee Date 

Oct 12 Nov 12 Jan 13 Feb 13 Apr 13 Total 

Strategic Initiatives 2 4 1     7 

Grants / Recs  1 1 2 3 9 16 

Delegated Gr 1 1 2 2 2 8 

Rejs/Recs     12 11 14 37 

Withdrawn        5 5 10 

Lapsed           0 

Pending  N/A N/A N/A N/A 25 25 

TOTAL  4 6 17 21 55 103 

Page 30



2.3 In the period 1st January 2013 to 31st March 2013, 108 applications 

were received.  Of these, two are recommended for a grant today, 

seven have been recommended for a grant under delegated 

authority, 13 are recommended for rejection and three have been 

withdrawn, leaving 81 pending.  

 

Table 3: Applications received 1st January – 31st March 2013 

 

  

Committee Date 

Jan 13 Feb 13 Apr 13 Total 

Strategic Initiatives   1   1 

Grants / Recs    1 2 3 

Delegated Gr     7 7 

Rejs/Recs     13 13 

Withdrawn      3 3 

Lapsed       0 

Pending    N/A 81 81 

TOTAL  0 2 106 108 

 

 

2.4 In the period since 1st April 2013 1 application has been received.  
This is a strategic initiative, to be considered for a grant today.   

 
3.0 Strategic Initiatives 

 

3.1 There is one new Strategic Initiative to be considered today.   

 
Table 4: Strategic Initiatives 2013/14  

 
Strategic Initiatives Committee date  £  

For this meeting:     

Access and Sustainability Advisory Service 18/04/13 192,900 

      

  Total 192,900 

      

Sum available (5% of total Working with 

Londoners budget) 

  747,500 

Balance remaining   554,600 

 

 

4.0 Working with Londoners summary 

 

 

4.1 From Table 5 you will see that a total of 67 Working with Londoners 

applications will be dealt with at this meeting. The total 

recommended sum is £1,430,095. 

 

 

 

Page 31



 

Table 5: Applications at this meeting – Summary  

 
Status Number 

Strategic Initiatives 1 

Working with Londoners grants recommended 16 

Working with Londoners grants delegated authority 10 

Working with Londoners grants rejections recommended 29 

Working with Londoners grants withdrawn 11 

Working with Londoners grants lapsed 0 

    

Total applications 67 

    

Working with Londoners grants recommended total £1,237,195 

Working with Londoners strategic initiatives £192,900 

    

Total recommendations £1,430,095 

 

4.2 From Table 6 you will see the relative distribution of grants this 

financial year, across your programme areas. 

 

Table 6: Grants in 2013-14 – by Programme  
 
Programme Area Year to date This meeting Total 

Working with Londoners £ £ £ 

Accessible London  0 197,700 197,700 

Bridging Communities  0 79,120 79,120 

Improving Mental Health  0 143,000 143,000 

London's Environment  0 86,500 86,500 

Older Londoners  0 147,500 147,500 

Positive Transitions  0 256,350 256,350 

Strengthening Third Sector  0 316,900 316,900 

Exceptional Grants  0 0 0 

Strategic Initiatives  0 192,900 192,900 

Greening the third sector eco-audits  0 10,125 10,125 

Total Working with Londoners  £0 £1,430,095 £1,430,095 

 

 

5.0 Working with Londoners write-backs and revocations 
 

5.1 No write-backs or revocations have been approved in the year April 

2013 to date.  Table 7 provides, for information, a summary of 
write-backs and revocations approved under delegated authority in 

the year 2012/13 since your last meeting.  (More detail on each of 

these is presented elsewhere in your papers today.) The balance 

has been added to the underspend request detailed in Table 8. 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



Table 7: Remaining Working with Londoners Write-backs and 

Revocations 2012/13 

 
Since your last 2012/13 meeting: £ 

Bromley Bowling Club Ltd 432 

City Bridge Trust (The Lord Mayors Show) 286 

Grandparents' Association 2,500 

Institute for Voluntary Action Research 255 

Merton MIND 40,000 

St Paul's Cathedral Foundation 1,514 

St Paul's Church, Hainault 42,600 

Wandsworth Women's Aid 7,900 

 Total 95,487 

 

 

6.0 Additional grants 

 

6.1 Get Young People Working – The Youth Offer: In September 

2012 you approved the priorities for a programme of work to help 
tackle the growing problem of rising numbers of young people not in 

employment, education or training (NEETs).  The Court of Common 
Council agreed to allocate an additional £3.2 million from Bridge 

House Estates towards this programme.  Each of the 32 London 

local authorities was then invited to apply for funding of up to 

£100,000 over a 2 year period. More detail of this scheme is 
presented elsewhere in your papers today. 

 
6.2 25 applications are recommended for a grant under the Get Young 

People Working programme leaving a further 6 pending (one 

application is a joint-bid from two boroughs). Full details are 

provided in separate papers at today’s meeting. The total 

recommended amount is £2,599,123. 
 

 

7.0 Summary of Spend 2013-14 

 

7.1 Table 8 (at the end of this paper) summarises the original budgets 

for 2013-14, including your core grants programme (Working with 

Londoners) and your one-off additional programme (Get Young 

People Working – The Youth Offer). 

 

7.2 This table also shows the implications of Strategic Initiatives of 

£192,900 for 2013/14 to date; today’s grant recommendations of 

£1,237,195 under Working with Londoners; and today’s 

recommendations of £2,599,123 under the Get Young People 

Working programme. 

 

7.3 A sum of £13,519,905 remains unspent on your Working with 

Londoners grants budget for 2013/4.  This excludes the sum of 

Page 33



£2,925,487 unspent in 2012/13 for which approval is currently 

being sought to carry forward to this financial year.  

 

 

Recommendations: 
 

That you 

 

a)  note the contents of the report. 

 

b)  consider the individual grant recommendations in relation to the 

applications set out in the summary schedule and other papers. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Contact:  

Jemma Grieve Combes, Grants Officer - 020 7332 3174  

jemma.grievecombes@cityoflondon.gov.uk     
Report written: 03/04/2013 

Page 34



Table 8: Grants budget 2013/14 

  

Working with Londoners 

Additional budget 

(Get Young People Working) 

£ £   £ 

Original Grants Budget for 2013/14   14,950,000    3,200,000  

Write-Backs & Revocations 2013/14 0        

Total Budgets Available   14,950,000    3,200,000  

          

  Approved 

/Recommended 

Budget 

Remaining 

Approved 

/Recommended 

Budget 

Remaining 

  £ £ £ £ 

Strategic Initiatives 192,900  14,757,100      

          

Applications at Committee         

April 2013 1,237,195  13,519,905  2,599,123  600,877  

May 2013   13,519,905      

June 2013   13,519,905      

July 2013   13,519,905      

September 2013   13,519,905      

October 2013   13,519,905      

November 2013   13,519,905      

January 2014   13,519,905      

February 2014   13,519,905      

March 2014   13,519,905      

          

Sub-total spend for 2013/14 1,430,095    2,599,123    

Total remaining budget for 2013/14   13,519,905    600,877  

          

Carry forward from 2012/13  

(to be approved) 

  

2,925,487      

Total 2013/14 budget remaining 

(if carry forward approved) 

  16,445,392  

    

 

P
age 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST 

 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 18 April 2013 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations 

 Annex Ref Requested Recommended Page 

 No. No. Organisation Amount Amount No. 

 Accessible London 

 1 11462 Markfield Project £166,910 £99,000  

 2 11473 Misgav £56,499 £56,500  

 Total Accessible London £223,409 £155,500 

 

 Bridging Communities 

 3 11288 Merton Home Tutoring £36,562 £34,120  

 Service 

 4 11313 British Muslims for £45,000 £45,000  

 Secular Democracy 

 Total Bridging Communities £81,562 £79,120 

 

 Improving Londoners' Mental Health 

 5 11365 Latin American £96,560 £96,500  

 Women's Aid 

 6 11588 St Cuthbert's Centre £46,500 £46,500  

 Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health £143,060 £143,000 

 

 London's Environment 

 7 11596 Federation of London £57,786 £55,000  

 Youth Clubs (London 
 Youth) 

 Total London's Environment £57,786 £55,000 

 

 Older Londoners 

 8 11589 Age UK Enfield £97,586 £97,500  

 9 11389 Hestia Housing & £50,000 £50,000  

 Support 

 Total Older Londoners £147,586 £147,500 

 

 Positive Transitions to Independent Living 

 10 11497 Kingston Centre For £133,653 £133,000  
 Independent Living 

 11 11618 Muscular Dystrophy £42,538 £42,500  

 Campaign 

Agenda Item 7b

Page 37



 THE CITY BRIDGE TRUST 

 The City Bridge Trust Committee - 18 April 2013 

 Summary of Grant Recommendations 

 Annex Ref Requested Recommended Page 

 No. No. Organisation Amount Amount No. 

 12 11487 Stroke Association £80,855 £80,850  

 Total Positive Transitions to Independent Living£257,046£256,350 

 

 Strengthening the Third Sector 

 13 11547 CREATE London £175,000 £75,000  

 14 11316 Pilotlight £50,925 £51,000  

 15 11640 Heart of the City £108,640 £108,000  

 16 11438 Forum for Health and £58,886 £58,900  

 Wellbeing 

 Total Strengthening the Third Sector £393,451 £292,900 

 

 Strategic Initiatives 

 17 11741 City Bridge Trust - £192,900 £192,900  

Access and Sustainability Advisory Service 

 Total Strategic Initiatives £192,900 £192,900 

 

 Grand Totals £1,496,800 £1,322,270 

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



 

 

Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 18 April 2013 

 

Subject: 

Applications recommended for rejection 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

 
Summary  

 
This report and the accompanying schedule outlines a total of 29 

grant applications that, for the reason(s) identified, are 

recommended for rejection. 
 

Recommendation 

 

That the grant applications detailed in the accompanying 

schedules be rejected. 
 

Main Report 

1. There are a total of 29 applications recommended for 

rejection at this meeting – all under your Working with 

Londoners programme. They are listed within categories in 

the accompanying schedules. In each case the “purpose” 

that is used to describe the application is that provided by 

the applicant organisation. All the recommendations are 

based on criteria set out in your Policy Guidance. Although 

the number of applications may appear high this is because 

of there being no Committee meeting in March. 
 

2. Copies of these application forms are available to view in 

the Members’ Reading Room. If any Committee Member 

wishes to query any of the recommendations, this can 

either be done at the meeting, in which case the decision 

may be deferred while full details are provided to the 

Member concerned, or by contacting the Trust office in 

advance of the meeting so that an explanation can be 

provided prior to or at the meeting.  
 

 

Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 

020 7332 3712    

Report written: 03/04/13 

Agenda Item 7c

Page 213



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



Accessible London

!!"#$

%&'()*+,-+./01'23

4,)5*,637&,8&*93.),)*,31)7:/'1;,7+
-+./01'23,<*0);,=;37)&3,>*?87+6
5;'.;,3+@7@31,7+A,3+.*0&7@31
A'17:'/')6,08)7B3,C*&,%/7.B
.0/)0&7//6,A'23&13,.;'/A&3+,7+A
6*0+@,83*8/3D

4,1?7//,*&@7+'17)'*+,;372'/6,&3/'7+),*+
);3,/*.7/,70);*&')6,C0+A'+@D,-),'1,+*)
./37&,5;7),C0+A'+@,'C,7+6,;71,:33+
13.0&3A,C*&,);3,.*?'+@,637&D,E&*?,);3
'+C*&?7)'*+,8&*2'A3A,);3,*&@7+'17)'*+F1
&3G031),5*0/A,?7B3,);3,=&01),);3
/7&@31),C0+A3&,5;'.;,'1,+*),6*0&,8*/'.6D

H#IJKLM NO

P7?:3);

!!Q#Q

N),R7));35F1
>;0&.;,<'351/36
S>>

4..311':'/')6,40A') =;3,)'?3,C&7?3,C*&,);3,8&*8*13A,.78')7/
A323/*8?3+),A*31,+*),1088*&),);3
&3G031),C*&,7+,7..311,70A'),)*,'+C*&?
);3,8&*.311D

H!JLMM TUR

V'//'+@A*+

!!Q#L

W7//'+@)*+,%*5/'+@
>/0:,P'?')3A

4..311,70A'),*C,);3,./0:;*013
@&*0+A,C/**&,7+A,3()3&+7/1

=;3,788/'.7+),*&@7+'17)'*+,'1,+*)
.*+1)')0)3A,71,7,.;7&')7:/3,:*A6,7+A
);3&3C*&3,'+3/'@':/3,C*&,.*+1'A3&7)'*+D

HK"I NX

N0))*+

Total Accessible London (3 items) £27,184

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

9:;$<=9>$?!=@8;$9!AB9
9C"$<+-D$?'+4("$9'0,-$<.33+--""$E$FG$61'+H$IJFK

B033)'D$.#$!"2.33"*4)-+.*,$#.'$!"5"2-+.*$E$L.'M+*($N+-C$O.*4.*"',$)*4$8'.N+*($O.2)H+-+",

P
age 215



Bridging Communities

!!Q#M

4+)'Y=&':7/'1?
R*23?3+)

=;3,<*0+@,P37A3&1,FP37A,7+A,:3
P3AF,8&*93.),7'?1,)*,A323/*8,IM
6*0+@,N*?7/'1,7+A,4&7:1,7@3A
!$Y#",C&*?,-++3&,P*+A*+
:*&*0@;1,)*,3+;7+.3,1B'//1D

S**&/6,8&313+)3A,788/'.7)'*+,5;'.;,/7.B1
10CC'.'3+),A3)7'/,71,)*,);3,1)&0.)0&3,*C
);3,8&*93.)D,S&*8*17/,/7.B1,.&3A':'/')6,)*
7.;'323,*0).*?31,)*,?33),6*0&
8&'*&')'31D

H#LJMMM >Z

[7/'+@

!!I$Q

4&:*0&,<*0);
>3+)&3

=;3,[?8*53&?3+),7+A,P37A3&1;'8
S&*93.),133B1,)*,'+.&3713,);3,1*.'7/
'+./01'*+,*C,+35/6Y7&&'23A,5*?3+
7+A,3?8*53&,);3?,)*,7.),71
/37A3&1,5');'+,);3'&,/*.7/
.*??0+')'31D

=;'1,8&*8*17/,'1,)*,5*&B,5');,7+A
:3+3C'),7A0/),5*?3+,7+A,'1,);3&3C*&3
*0)1'A3,);3,*:93.)1,*C,);3,.;7&')6,\)*
:3+3C'),.;'/A&3+,7+A,6*0+@,83*8/3]D

H!!#J"!$ TUR

=*53&,V7?/3)1

!!"^K

4&A;?3&'7

[N_P,./71131,C*.013A,*+,);3,+33A1
*C,4/:7+'7+,7+A,`*1*27+,5*?3+
7+A,87&3+)1,5;*,C7.3,:7&&'3&1,'+
13))'+@,08,C7?'/'31,'+,);3,a`D

E&*?,);3,C'+7+.'7/,'+C*&?7)'*+,8&*2'A3AJ
6*0&,_CC'.3&,'1,+*),7110&3A,*C,);3
*&@7+'17)'*+F1,C'+7+.'7/,1)7:'/')6D,-+.*?3
;71,7/?*1),;7/23A,*+,);3,8&32'*01,637&D

H#IJ$IM NO

W7+A15*&);

!!"$"

>&*6A*+,Z3C0@33
O76,>3+)&3

N7/7&6,C*&,87&)Y)'?3,.*Y*&A'+7)*& E&*?,);3,'+C*&?7)'*+,727'/7:/3,+*,*);3&
&323+03,'+.*?3,'1,3');3&,13.0&3A,*&
:3'+@,1*0@;),C*&,);3,.*?'+@,637&D,-),'1
+*),6*0&,8*/'.6,)*,?7B3,@&7+)1,'+,);313
.'&.0?1)7+.31D

H#IJ"MM NX

>&*6A*+

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 216



!!L$Q

-+)3&C7');,4.)'*+

=*,:&'+@,6*0+@,83*8/3,)*@3);3&
C&*?,A'CC3&3+),C7');1J,.0/)0&31,7+A
.*??0+')'31,Y,'+./0A'+@,);3
?'@&7+),.*??0+')6,Y,)*,.&37)3,7
.*??0+')6,7&),.7?87'@+,3(8/*&'+@
?*A3&+,%&')'1;,'A3+)')6D

E&*?,);3,'+C*&?7)'*+,8&*2'A3AJ,'),5*0/A
133?,);7),);3,*&@7+'17)'*+,;71,?*&3
);7+,10CC'.'3+),C0+A1,'+,&313&23,)*,?33)
);'1,3(83+A')0&3D

HIKJQMI NX

>7?A3+

!!I"L

N*0);:7+B,R*17'.1
>->

=*,A323/*8,N*0);:7+B,R*17'.1,71
7,>')6,b,X0'/A1,)&7'+'+@,.3+)&3,7+A
13),08,);3,P*+A*+,N.;**/,*C
R*17'.D

4/);*0@;,);'1,*&@7+'17)'*+,5*&B1,5');,7
A'23&13,./'3+),@&*08J,);3,788/'.7)'*+
A*31,+*),7AA&311,);3,8&'*&')'31,*C,6*0&
%&'A@'+@,>*??0+')'31,8&*@&7??3D

HKIJ"#M TE

P7?:3);

!!Q##

<*0);,P37&+'+@
c3)5*&B,P)A

E0+A'+@,5'//,1088*&),7+
3A0.7)'*+7/,8&*@&7??3,'+,5;'.;
2*/0+)33&1,C&*?,*+3,?'+*&')6
3);+'.,.*??0+')6,5'//,)0)*&,7+A
?3+)*&,.;'/A&3+,7+A,6*0+@,83*8/3
*C,7+*);3&,:7.B@&*0+AD

4,&3/7)'23/6,1?7//,*&@7+'17)'*+,5;3&3
);3,&3G031)3A,10?,5*0/A,7/?*1),A*0:/3
);3,*&@7+'17)'*+F1,7++07/,)0&+*23&J
5;'.;,'1,+*),6*0&,8*/'.6D

H#"JMMM NX

N*0);57&B

Total Bridging Communities (7 items) £353,982

Improving Londoners' Mental Health

!!"KM

%V,-1/7?'.,>3+)&3,Y
P*+A*+

=*,*CC3&,8&7.)'.7/,?3+)7/,;37/);
1088*&),)*,);3,&3C0@331
3(83&'3+.'+@,?3+)7/,A'1)&311D

=;'1,'1,7,&3/7)'23/6,1?7//,*&@7+'17)'*+
5');,/'))/3,3(83&'3+.3,*C,'+YA38);,?3+)7/
;37/);,5*&BD,4,@&7+),.7++*),);3&3C*&3
:3,&3.*??3+A3AD

H#IJMMM NX

%&3+)

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 217



!!Q!#

>cWP,cVN
E*0+A7)'*+,=&01)
>;7&')7:/3,E0+A

R7).;,C0+A'+@,)*,;3/8,.&37)3,7
?01'.,1)0A'*,7),);3,X*&A*+
V*18')7/,C*&,.*??0+')6,./'3+)1
5');,816.;*1'1D,W3,+33A,7.*01)'.
)&37)?3+),7+A,7,8'7+*D

=;'1,788/'.7)'*+,133B1,C0+A1,C*&,5*&B
5');'+,);3,cVN,5;'.;,'),'1,+*),6*0&
8*/'.6,)*,C0+AD

H"J^I$ NX

W31)?'+1)3&

!!Q#!

E7&1*8;*+3
411*.'7)'*+,'+
%&')7'+

E0+A'+@,?*);3&,)*+@03,.*0+13//'+@
7+A,816.;*);3&786,1311'*+1,5;'.;
5'//,&3A0.3,);3,?3+)7/,A'1)&311,*C
20/+3&7:/3,&3C0@331,7+A,?'@&7+)1
'+,P*+A*+D

=;'1,788/'.7)'*+,133B1,C0+A'+@,)*57&A1
7+,*&@7+'17)'*+7/,.**&A'+7)*&,)*,A323/*8
7+A,3+10&3,1?**);,&0++'+@,*C,,13&2'.31
)*,&38/7.3,C0+A1,5;'.;,;723,3(8'&3AD
E&*?,);3,'+C*&?7)'*+,8&*2'A3A,'),5*0/A
78837&,);7),);3,@&7+),&3G031)3A,5*0/A
?7B3,);3,=&01),);3,/7&@31),1'+@/3,C0+A3&
5;'.;,'1,+*),6*0&,8*/'.6D

H!!!J^I# NO

%7&+3)

!!"$L

V7&&*5,>7&3&1

N088*&)'+@,.7&3&1,'+,V7&&*5J
'+./0A'+@,);*13,7@3A,*23&,Q"J,'+
'?8&*2'+@,816.;*/*@'.7/,;37/);,7+A
/*+@Y)3&?,?3+)7/,;37/);
*0).*?31D

=;'1,8&*93.),7'?1,)*,&37.;,.7&3&1,*C,7//
7@31,5');,A38&311'*+,7+A,*);3&,?3+)7/
;37/);,+33A1D,-),'1,);3&3C*&3
'+10CC'.'3+)/6,C*.013A,*+,6*0&,8&'*&')6,)*
)7.B/3,A38&311'*+,7?*+@1),*/A3&,83*8/3
7@3A,*23&,Q"D

H$#JQI! TX>

V7&&*5

!!"!K

R4>Ya`

=*,3?8/*6,7,>;'3C,_83&7)'+@
_CC'.3&,)*,;3/8,'?8/3?3+),);3
&7A'.7/,)&7+1C*&?7)'*+,*C,?3+)7/
;37/);,A3/'23&6,C*&,6*0+@,83*8/3
'+2*/23A,'+,@7+@1,7+A,7+)'Y1*.'7/
:3;72'*0&D

O&7C),7..*0+)1,)*,LM);,N38)3?:3&,#M!#
1;*5,C&33,&313&231,*C,H##M`,7@7'+1),7
8*/'.6,)*,;*/A,H!M#`D,=;3,*&@7+'17)'*+
1)7)31,'),?76,013,1*?3,*C,);'1,10&8/01
)*,'+.&3713,);3,;*0&1,*C,3('1)'+@,8*1)1
3).,5;3+,);36,.*0/A,'+1)37A,C0+A,);'1
&3G031),C&*?,);3,10&8/01,'C,);36,);*0@;)
'),1*,'?8*&)7+)D

H!IMJK#! >Z

>7?A3+

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 218



!!Q"M

_`,E*0+A7)'*+

-?8&*23A,?3+)7/,;37/);,*C
;*?3/311,83*8/3J,);&*0@;
711311?3+)J,&3C3&&7/1,7+A
5*&B1;*81,'+d,;37/);6,37)'+@J
.**B'+@J,53//Y:3'+@,\.&7C),7+A
1'+@'+@]J,-=,7+A,9*:,137&.;D

=;'1,&3G031),'1,7,@3+3&7/,87.B7@3,*C
1088*&),C*&,/*.7/,;*?3/311,83*8/3,5;'.;
A*31,+*),10CC'.'3+)/6,7AA&311,?3+)7/
;37/);,'11031D

H!KJ!!M NX

V7&'+@36

!!QIQ

e07@@6
O323/*8?3+),=&01)

N3.0&3,4A0/)1,N3.0&3,>;'/A&3+,Y,=*
&3A0.3,?3+)7/,;37/);,'11031,*C
A'17A27+)7@3A,.;'/A&3+,'+
X&33+5'.;fP35'1;7?,);&*0@;
'+)3+1'23,1088*&),)*,C7?'/'31,0+A3&
1)&311,*&,'+,.&'1'1D

=;'1,788/'.7)'*+,133B1,C0+A'+@,C*&,C7?'/6
1088*&),7+A,7+)3Y+7)7/,5*&B,5');
?*);3&1,0+A3&,1)&311J,5;'.;,6*0,;723
8&32'*01/6,7@&33A,C7//,*0)1'A3,6*0&
8&*@&7??3,8&'*&')'31D

H$"JI!$ NX

P35'1;7?

!!L$I

W'A*51,7+A
_&8;7+1
-+)3&+7)'*+7/

=*,'+.&3713,7..311,)*,?3+)7/
;37/);,13&2'.31,C*&,!$M
)&70?7)'13AJ,20/+3&7:/3,7+A
'1*/7)3A,&3C0@331,7+A,716/0?
133B3&1D

4,23&6,.*1)/6,&3G031),C*&,7,8&*93.),)*
7AA&311,@3+3&7/,)&70?7,7?*+@
&3C0@331,7+A,716/0?,133B3&1D,-),'1,+*)
C0//6,./37&,;*5,);3,5*&B,5*0/A,?33),);3
183.'C'.,8&'*&')'31,*C,6*0&,?3+)7/,;37/);
8&*@&7??3D,=;3,C'+7+.'7/,'+C*&?7)'*+
8&*2'A3A,A*31,+*),?7B3,./37&,5;6,);'1
10?,5*0/A,:3,+33A3AD

H!KMJ"$# TeR

%7&B'+@,b
O7@3+;7?

Total Improving Londoners' Mental Health (8 items) £660,162

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 219



London's Environment

!!"$^

S3*8/3,7+A,S/7+3)
N)0A3+),4.)'2')'31
P)A

[+@7@3J,3?8*53&,7+A,1088*&)
6*0+@,P*+A*+3&1,C&*?,7,27&'3)6,*C
:7.B@&*0+A1,'+,)3&)'7&6,3A0.7)'*+
)*,7.),71,833&,3+2'&*+?3+)7/
3A0.7)*&1,7+A,.;7+@3,?7B3&1D

S&*8*17/,'1,C&*?,7+,*&@7+'17)'*+,:713A
'+,_(C*&A,7+A,.*?8&'131Y,7/*+@,5');,7
;3C)6,&3G031),C*&,)&723/,3(83+131,Y
.*+)&':0)'*+,)*,Q,.*&3,8*1)1,5;'.;,'1,+*)
6*0&,0107/,8&7.)'.3,)*,1088*&)D,N*?3,*C
);3,*0)80)1,78837&,23&6,/*5,C*&,);3
10?,&3G0'&3AD

H!M"JMMM >Z

_0)1'A3
P*+A*+

Total London's Environment (1 item) £105,000

Older Londoners

!!QML

4C&'.7,4A2*.7.6
E*0+A7)'*+,\44E]

S&*2'A'+@,8;61'.7/,3(3&.'131J
);3&7830)'.,?7117@3J,;37/);6
/'2'+@,7A2'.3J,-=,1B'//1J,
2*/0+)33&'+@,*88*&)0+')'31,C*&
4C&'.7+,7+A,>7&'::37+,83*8/3,
7@3A,Q",7+A,7:*23,'+,P7?:3);J
N*0);57&BJ,P35'1;7?

>*+C/'.)'+@,'+C*&?7)'*+,8&*2'A3A,71,)*
);3,7@3Y@&*08,*C,);3,:3+3C'.'7&'31D
N*?3,*C,);3,*0).*?31,78837&
*23&Y*8)'?'1)'.D,E&33,&313&231,;3/A,7&3
.*+1'A3&7:/6,/311,);7+,);3,8*/'.6,/323/
\!K`,;3/A,7@7'+1),7,8*/'.6,*C,H^$`]D

HK$JQ#! >Z

P35'1;7?

!!II$

4//,N*0/1,>/0:;*013

N)7CC,17/7&'31,C*&,>/0:>7&3J,*0&
8&*93.),5*&B'+@,5');,'1*/7)3A,*/A3&
83*8/3,'+,E')g&*2'7J,7+A,);3,>**BF1
N7/7&6,C*&,*0&,533B/6,P0+.;,>/0:
C*&,*/A3&,83*8/3D

=;3,9*:,A31.&'8)'*+,8&*2'A3A,C*&,);3
8*1),)*,5;'.;,6*0,7&3,71B3A,)*
.*+)&':0)3,'+./0A31,7,&7+@3,*C,A0)'31
A'&3.)/6,.*++3.)3A,5');,);3,8&*?*)'*+
*C,&3/'@'*+,7+A,'1,);3&3C*&3,'+3/'@':/3,)*
:3,.*+1'A3&3A,C*&,C0+A'+@D

H!KJ$LM TX>

W31)?'+1)3&

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 220



!!QM$

%&3+A*+.7&3
E*0+A7)'*+

=;&*0@;,'?8&*23?3+)1,)*
&31'A3+)1F,/'2'+@,187.31,53,5'//
.&37)3,7,17C3,7+A,1)'?0/7)'+@
A3?3+)'7,C&'3+A/6,3+2'&*+?3+)J
)7'/*&3A,)*,);3,+33A1,*C,A3?3+)'7
10CC3&3&1,)*,'?8&*23,);3'&,G07/')6
*C,/'C3D

=;'1,788/'.7)'*+,133B1,C0+A'+@,C*&
'?8&*23?3+)1,)*,7,&31'A3+)'7/,.7&3
13))'+@J,5;'.;,'),'1,+*),6*0&,8*/'.6,)*
1088*&)D

H#"J$!$ NX

_0)1'A3
P*+A*+

!!"K"

V7&?*+6,V*013
O7@3+;7?,>->

=*,1088*&),);3,5*&B,*C,N'/23&+3)d,7
.*+10/)7)'23,7+A,.7?87'@+'+@
C*&0?,C*&,_/A3&,83*8/3,/'2'+@,'+,);3
:*&*0@;,*C,%7&B'+@,7+A
O7@3+;7?D

E0+A'+@,)*57&A1,7+,3('1)'+@
8&*@&7??3D,=;3,788/'.7+),;71,+*)
?7A3,7,10CC'.'3+),.713,);7),);3,5*&B,C')1
);3,*0).*?31,*C,6*0&,8&*@&7??3,C*&
F_/A3&,P*+A*+3&1FD

H#IJKK$ =W

%7&B'+@,b
O7@3+;7?

!!"$M

-1/3,*C,O*@1
%7+@/7A31;'
411*.'7)'*+,b
>0/)0&7/,>3+)&3

N)7CC,57@31,7+A,&0++'+@,.*1)D 4,1?7//,.;7&')6,133B'+@,C0+A1,C*&,);3
17/7&6,*C,7,87&),)'?3,5*&B3&,)*,&0+
N7)0&A76,@&*081,C*&,*/A3&,83*8/3,7+A
5;'.;,78837&1,*23&,.*1)3AD,Z3)0&+1,)*
>;7&')6,>*??'11'*+,7&3,.*+1'1)3+)/6
/7)3,5;'.;,@'231,.7013,C*&,.*+.3&+D

H#IJMMM NO

=*53&,V7?/3)1

Total Older Londoners (5 items) £193,267

Positive Transitions to Independent Living

!!II!

%*0+.3,%7.B
E*0+A7)'*+

=&7'+'+@J,/'C3,1B'//1,7+A,5*&B
3(83&'3+.3,8&*93.),7'?3A,7)
711'1)'+@,3(Y*CC3+A3&1,5');,A'CC'.0/)
)&7+1')'*+,*C,&313))/'+@,'+,)*,);3'&
.*??0+')'31,7C)3&,10.;,7,.01)*A'7/
13+)3+.3D

=;3,788/'.7+),:*A6,'1,7,&3/7)'23/6,+35
*&@7+'17)'*+,7+A,);3,'+C*&?7)'*+
8&*2'A3A,8&313+)1,7,.*+C01'+@,/3@7/
1)&0.)0&3,5;'.;,5*0/A,+33A,)*,:3
&31*/23A,:3C*&3,7,@&7+),.*0/A,:3
.*+1'A3&3AD

H$MJ#!Q TX>

P7?:3);

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

P
age 221



!!QLI

P3@7/,4A2'.3,>3+)&3

=*,31)7:/'1;,7,8&*93.),A3C'+'+@,7
+35,?*A3/,*C,7A2'.3,7+A,7A2*.7.6
8&*2'1'*+,C*&,*0&,013&1,5');,?3+)7/
;37/);,8&*:/3?1D

=;'1,'1,7,@3+3&7/,1088*&),13&2'.3,C*&
83*8/3,5');,?3+)7/,'//,;37/);,7+A,A*31
+*),7AA&311,7+6,*C,6*0&,183.'C'.,.&')3&'7D

H$IJMMM NX

=*53&,V7?/3)1

!!"K^

S&'1*+,E3//*51;'8
[+@/7+A,b,W7/31

=*,8&*2'A3,7,&31)*&7)'23,901)'.3
8&*@&7??3J,.7//3A,N6.7?*&3,=&33J
'+,P*+A*+,8&'1*+1,);7),5'//,1088*&)
*CC3+A3&1,'+,?7B'+@,.;*'.31,);7)
&3A0.3,);3'&,&'1B,*C,&3Y*CC3+A'+@D

=;3,*&@7+'17)'*+F1,&3.&0')?3+)
8&7.)'.31J,:*);,C*&,1)7CC,7+A,2*/0+)33&1J
7&3,*23&/6,&31)&'.)'23,7+A,5*0/A,+*)
.*?8/6,5');,);3,=&01)F1,2'35,*C,@**A
8&7.)'.3D

HQ^J"MM >Z

W31)?'+1)3&

!!QLK

Z'@;),N)38

[?8/*6?3+),1*/0)'*+J,-=,=&7'+'+@
5*&B1;*81,7+A,1B'//1,7.G0'1')'*+,)*
7'A,[?8/*6?3+)J,C*&,83*8/3,5');
9*:/311,A03,)*,27&'31,&371*+J
A'17:'/')6J,/7.B,*C,);3,-=,1B'//1D

=;'1,&3G031),133B1,C0+A'+@,C*&,7,@3+3&7/
3?8/*6?3+),&37A'+311,8&*93.)J,5;'.;
A*31,+*),?33),6*0&,.&')3&'7D

H#MJI!M NX

c35;7?

!!QL"

N*08,`').;3+,7),);3
4?3&'.7+,>;0&.;

_+3,637&F1,17/7&6,C*&,*0&
W3/.*?3&J,5;*,A37/1,5');,&3C3&&7/1
*C,*0&,@031)1,)*,*);3&,8&*93.)1,7+A
@031)1F,'+A'2'A07/,53//Y:3'+@D

=;3,&3G031)3A,80&8*13,*C,);'1
788/'.7)'*+,A*31,+*),?33),7+6,*C,);3
.&')3&'7,*C,6*0&,8&*@&7??31D

HKJMMM NX

>7?A3+

Total Positive Transitions to Independent Living (5 items) £261,126

!"#$%

&'()*+,)-+.*

/0'1.,"

$

!"),.*$#.'$

!"2.33"*4)-+.*$#.'$!"5"2-+.*

63.0*-$

!"70",-"4

8')*-,$&##+2"'

%$6'")

8')*4$9.-)H,$PIQ$+-"3,R SFTUJJTVIF

P
age 222



Committee: Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 18 April 2013 

 

Subject: 

Withdrawn & Lapsed Applications (Working with 

Londoners programmes)  

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to those applications to the Working 

with Londoners which have been subsequently withdrawn by the 

applicant or lapsed due to additional information not forthcoming. 

 
Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 
 

Withdrawn Applications: 
 

 
Organisation      Purpose of Request 

 

 

TARA Arts Group Ltd “The renovation of existing premises to 
deliver an eco-sustainable theatre building 

that is fully accessible, and so achieve long-

term business stability.” 
 

After discussion with your Officer the 

organisation has withdrawn this request to 
resolve some financial issues. It hopes to 

re-apply in due course. 

 

 

Shakespeare Globe Trust “Delivering a co-ordinated Access provision 

for audiences and performers in our new 

indoor Jacobean theatre and Access signage 

across the Globe site.” 
 

Organisation has withdrawn this request to 

reconsider the London benefit of any 

application to the Trust. 

 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 223



Somali Bravanese 

Association In London 

(SBAIL) 

“English Classes (ESOL) For Refugees and 

Asylum seekers to improve their English 

language, build confidence, opportunity to 

socialize, integrate and become good 

citizens.” 
 

Organisation is now seeking advice on ESOL 

provision from borough lead and may re-

apply at a later stage. 
 

 

Trussell Trust “Continued expansion of the London 

foodbank network so that every London 

borough has at least one community 

foodbank project. We have four boroughs to 

go.” 
 

Organisation wishes to withdraw this 

request and re-submit at a later date. 
 

 

Community Focus “To work with Young People 16-25 with 

recognisable mental health problems who 
have had/who are at risk of contact with 

the Criminal Justice System.” 
 

Following discussions with your Officer and 

developments to the proposed project, the 
organisation has decided to withdraw this 

application and re-submit a proposal that 

better meets your criteria. 
 

 

London Environmental 

Education Forum (LEEF) 

“Increase the value and effectiveness of 

Environmental Education so Londoners can 

act on environmental issues such as climate 

change and biodiversity conservation.” 
 

The application was submitted by the 

partnership organisation LEEF. As LEEF is 

not a legal entity in its own right, for clarity 

the application has been withdrawn and will 

be re-submitted in the name of its 

accountable body, London Wildlife Trust. 
 

 

Camden Arts Centre “To create a social group for older people in 

Camden to keep mentally and physically 

active by taking part in stimulating creative 

activities.” 

 

Page 224



Application withdrawn when organisation 

was made aware that it could not be 

considered until 3 years had elapsed since 

the previous grant. 

 

  

Complicite “TEA - a unique community arts project for 

older people living in sheltered housing.” 
 

The organisation has advised that due to 

unforeseen circumstances the project 

cannot proceed at this time hence the 

application has been withdrawn. 
 

 

Kilburn Older Voices 

Exchange (KOVE) 

“Coordinator's role in project managing an 

initiative that focuses on isolated and lonely 

older people mainly aged 75 plus to 

heighten awareness in the community and 

to help link people to activities.” 
 

The organisation had misunderstood your 

rule over funding of repeat applications and 

applied before it was eligible. Following 

your Officer's advice, the organisation has 
withdrawn this application. 
 

 

Prison Advice and Care 

Trust 

“To fund the establishment and 

development of a London Women Ex-

Offenders Resettlement Programme. This 

will help such women to make the transition 
to successful resettlement.” 
 

Application withdrawn when the 

organisation realised that it had applied too 

early following the end of the previous 

grant. 
 

 

CareNet “The grant will fund the contribution 

towards current part time coordinator post 

funded by Trust For London that will come 

to end march 2013.” 
 

Following your Officer's advice, the 

organisation has decided to withdraw this 

application and re-apply with a proposal 
that better meets your priorities. 

  

  
 

Page 225



Total Withdrawn Applications: 11 

Total Lapsed Applications:  0 

 

 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 

Tel:  020 7332 3186 

Date report written:  03/04/13 

Page 226



 

Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 18 April 2013 

 

Subject: 

Variations to Grants 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 
 

Summary  

 
This report advises Members of variation to 9 grants agreed by 

the Chief Grants Officer since your last meeting. 
 

Recommendation 

That Members receive this report and note its contents. 
 

Main Report 

Since your last meeting variations to the 9 grants outlined below have 
been agreed by the Chief Grants Officer, in line with the revised 

delegated procedure for the amendment of grants as agreed by your 

Committee in October 2004. 
 

Although the number of variations at this meeting may appear high this is 
because of their being no meeting of the Committee in March to which 

some would otherwise have been reported. 
 

 

 

Evaluation of Improving Services for Older People Programme 

In April 2008 a sum of £20,000 was agreed within the allocation for 

Strategic Initiatives to commission IVAR to evaluate the Improving 

Services for Older People programme. The final bill came in slightly less 
than the allocation and so the sum of £255 has been revoked. 

 

Merton Mind 

In May 2008 you awarded the above £120,000 over 3 years for a project 

supporting older people with mental ill health. The project got off to a 

slow start in year 1 (due to staff changes and other factors) and never 

quite gained the momentum anticipated in year 2. Consequently it was 

agreed to revoke the third year’s instalment of £40,000. 

 

 

Agenda Item 8b

Page 227



H:\WP\MEETING\10-11 Meetings\March 11\Report - Variations to Grants.doc 

Lord Mayor’s Show (2011) 

£23,500 was set aside in May 2011 (within your allocation for Strategic 

Initiatives) to cover the costs of the Trust’s participation in the 2011 Lord 

Mayor’s Show. After settling all invoices the unused sum of £286 was 

revoked. 

 

Lord Mayor’s Show (2012) 

In May 2012 £24,110 was agreed from the allocation for Strategic 

Initiatives towards the Trust’s participation in the 2012 Lord Mayor’s 

Show. After the settling of all invoices the unspent balance of £4,160 was 

revoked. 

 

Wandsworth Women’s Aid 

In March 2009 a grant of £23,000 was approved for three years’ support 

of art and dramatherapy sessions with children. Although the organisation 

satisfactorily reported on the first year (ending December 2010) no report 

was received for the second year nor has the third year’s instalment 
(£7,900) ever been claimed. This sum has therefore been revoked. 

 

Grandparents’ Association 

The above was awarded £77,500 in May 2009 for a three year project 
which included an element of £2,500 for evaluation. Despite much advice 

and guidance being given to the organisation throughout the lifetime of 
the project no independent evaluation was commissioned (although the 

standard reporting of the grant was satisfactory throughout). As a result 

the £2,500 sum has been revoked. 

 
St Paul’s Cathedral Foundation 

St Paul’s Cathedral Foundation was granted £1,184,045 in July 2004 
towards the creation of an education centre and other access works. The 

grant has been paid out in a series of instalments since then and until 

February 2011 when the last payment was claimed. All but £1,514 has 
been claimed and, given the time since the works have been completed, 

it has been assumed that this balance is no longer required and has been 
revoked. 

 

St Paul’s Church Hainault 

In March 2012 the above was awarded £42,600 for access works. The 

organisation wrote to the Trust in October 2012 to inform us that, in the 

economic climate, they felt they were no longer able to raise the full 

target of £1.5m and that the grant was no longer required. This sum has 

therefore been revoked.  

 

Bromley Bowling Club Ltd 

In July 2011 £18,300 was awarded to provide disabled access and 

facilities for bowlers, visitors and guests. The new facilities, which were 

Page 228



H:\WP\MEETING\10-11 Meetings\March 11\Report - Variations to Grants.doc 

opened by your Chairman in 2012, came in slightly under-budget and so 

the unspent balance of £432 has been revoked. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty 

Tel:  020 7332 3186 
Date report written:  03/04/2013 

Page 229



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 18 April 2013 

 

Subject: 

Grants Approved under Delegated Authority 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

This Report draws your attention to 5 applications which have been 

approved under delegated authority either by the Chairman and 

Deputy Chairman or by the Chief Grants Officer. 

 

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents 

 
 

By the Chairman and Deputy Chairman 
 

Organisation      Amount and Purpose of Grant 

 

 
Angel Shed Theatre 

Company 

£24,000 over three years (3 x £8,000) 

towards the salary of a part time 
Community Outreach and Inclusive Support 

Worker (16hrs p.w) and 1 day p.w of the 

Artistic Director's salary. 

 

Westminster House Youth 

Club 

£18,200 for a third and final year's support 

towards the salary of a full-time youth 

worker, subject to receipt of a satisfactory 

report for year two of the current grant 

award. 

 

Fanshen £6,500 towards its performance of Green 

and Pleasant Land and workshops in 10 

primary schools and 4 open spaces in 2013. 

 

Garden Classroom £25,000 towards the salary and on costs of 

the Chief Executive to consolidate and 

deliver an environmental programme in 

North East London. 

 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 231



Action for Advocacy £24,000 for one year's support of a part-

time post plus associated costs of a project 

to map and develop BME information, 

advice and advocacy providers in London. 

 

  

  
  

Recommendation 

That you receive this report and note its contents. 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: 

Ciaran Rafferty, Principal Grants Officer 

Tel:  020 7332 3186 

Date report written:  03/04/13 

Page 232



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Pesticide Action Network 

UK 

Grant ref: 

9744 (Ciaran Rafferty) 

Programme area: 

London's Environment 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

18/02/2010: £52,500 over three years (£17,000; £17,500; £18,000) for the salary 

costs of a part-time Volunteer Co-ordinator to support London volunteers, work with 

parks managers who want assistance with reducing the use of pesticides. The grant in 

years 2 and 3 conditional upon the balance of funds being raised from other sources.  

Visiting Grants Officer: Tim Wilson 

accompanied by Alderman Alison Gowman 

Date of meeting: 25 March 2013 

 

Met with: Keith Tyrell (Director) and Nick Mole (Policy Officer and Volunteer 

Coordinator) 

1. Introduction to the organisation: Pesticide Action Network (PAN) works to 

promote alternatives to chemical pest control, to reduce pesticide dependence, and to 

eliminate the use of pesticides that are environmentally harmful. Established in 1982, 

PAN is part of a global network of 600 organisations working towards similar aims.  

In the UK, PAN publishes guidance for decision-makers and other interested parties on 
the use of pesticides and promotes policy change. 

PAN’s work with global partners includes supporting farmers to move towards organic 
methods, encouraging better labelling by supermarkets and certification bodies, and 

monitoring the impact of pesticides on health. 

The charity has a small staff team and has weathered some difficult times recently, 

with three grants accounting for over 70% of its income ending in the same year. 
However, and following a review of activities, PAN concentrates on work that it 

believes is likely to be most influential, and actively seeks partners who can help 
disseminate their messages to a wider audience. 

2. The project funded: 

Whilst 95% of pesticide use in the UK is agricultural, the majority of human pesticide 
exposure comes from their use in parks and other urban green spaces. In 2009 the 

EU Directive on the Sustainable Use of Pesticides included provision to restrict their 

use in public parks. PAN identified this directive as an opportunity to focus on the use 

of pesticides in London’s green spaces. 

City Bridge Trust awarded a three year grant of £52,000 in February 2010. PAN drew 

down first instalment in January 2011, and funds are provided towards 2.5 days per 

week of the pesticide-free parks project Volunteer Coordinator, working with a 

network of volunteers towards the aim of pesticide-free green spaces. The second and 

third years of the award were conditional on PAN raising other funding, which it did 

from the Chapman Trust. 

The original post-holder left PAN in March 2011, and the work has been delivered by 

Nick Mole (who is also the charity’s Policy Officer) since then.  

3. Work delivered to date: 

In the first year of grant, the majority of work went into developing materials for 

volunteers to use when campaigning for pesticide-free local green spaces. PAN 
identified and contacted over 600 friends of parks groups across London, working to 

engage them with the campaign. PAN took advantage of growing interest in bee-

keeping and bee numbers to highlight the importance of biodiverse green spaces in 

urban areas in order to promote pesticide-free parks. PAN found it harder to engage 

Agenda Item 8d

Page 233



with parks managers, as these people were often dealing with reduced budgets and 

time to discuss new projects. The charity sought to remedy this by creating an online 

resource for park managers to advertise their needs, and volunteers to identify their 

willingness to provide support. 

In the second year of grant the website for parks managers and the public was made 

live, and the toolkit made available for download. The post-holder built relationships 

with several larger partners including Sustain and Friends of the Earth in order to 

push for measures outlawing pesticide use in urban spaces. The charity was invited to 

give evidence to the Environment Audit Committee in 2012, and was able to make 

good progress with two London boroughs interested in rolling out a pesticide-free 

approach to their parks management. 

4. Difference made: 

Whilst the first year of work was preparatory, the relationships PAN built and the 

materials it developed started to generate change in the second year of grant. PAN 

has been able to foster particularly good contacts four London Boroughs and hopes 

that one will shortly declare itself pesticide free. PAN hopes this will provide impetus 

for others to do likewise. 

The charity has enjoyed much greater interest in its work than originally expected 

because of the widespread media coverage of bee-keeping. PAN has used this well, 
and tailored its materials to connect its pesticide work to relevant bee issues. 

The website has been developed to allow groups to post their own materials, and PAN 

has designed it to be self-sustaining if no further funding is secured. It is worth noting 
that the work has been delivered during an especially turbulent financial time for PAN. 

5. Grants Administration:  
Accounts for the year ending 31st December 2011 correctly identify City Bridge Trust 

funding. 2012 accounts are not yet available. The first monitoring report was 

submitted in December 2011 and rated “satisfactory” as the project had made a 

slower than expected start, reflecting the difficulties experienced by PAN in that year. 
The second monitoring report was submitted in October 2012 and showed 

improvement, being rated “good”. The Grant Officer noted that work was progressing 
well and enjoyed good levels of engagement. A final report is expected in October 

2013. 

During the visit PAN shared a copy of the financial records kept for the project which 

show the way funds are tracked for staff time and appears satisfactory. A form P11 

had been requested in advance but was not supplied during the meeting. It is 

expected to follow shortly by email and will be placed on file. 

6. Concluding comments: 

PAN is a small organisation, but clearly well respected for its reasoned, scientific 

approach to pesticide use. It appears counter-intuitive that PAN might focus efforts on 

pesticide use in urban areas when the majority of pesticide use is rural. However, the 

charity has identified a way of engaging the broader public by focusing on parks and 

green spaces which is where there is most human contact with pesticide.  
The first year of work focused on materials and contacts, but there is evidence that, 

through thoughtful partnership working, the charity has reached a much larger 

audience than it would otherwise have been able to by itself. 

It may be challenging for PAN to sustain an active website after this grant unless 

replacement funding is secured. Although the URL has been registered for the future, 

public participation on the website may wane without a central coordinator. 
 Page 234



City Bridge Trust – Monitoring Visit Report 
 

Organisation: 

Fine Cell Work 

Grant ref: 

10304 

Programme area: 

Improving Londoners' 

Mental Health\d)  

Prisoners, ex-prisoners & 

other in the Criminal 

Justice System 

Amount, date and purpose of grant: 

20/01/2011: £98,500 (£27,400, £29,500, £41,600) over 3 years towards the salary 

costs of a Studio Workshop Manager at H.M.P Wandsworth helping improve social and 

employability skills on release.  

Visiting Grants Officer:  Jenny Field 

accompanied by Deputy Nash 

 

Date of meeting:  5th February 2013 

 

Met with: 
Katy Emck (CEO), Hilda Sheppard (Studio Workshop Manager) + several volunteers. 

 

1. Introduction to the organisation:   
Established in 1997, Fine Cell Work (FCW) uses trained volunteers to teach 

needlework to serving prisoners – 75% of them men.  Despite the preconception 
that needlework is for women only and the ‘macho’ image of most male prisoners, 

the classes are very popular, always with a waiting list.  The quality of the 

cushions, bags, wall hangings and quilts produced is very high and much of the 

work is commissioned.  Prisoners also produce heritage commissions for such 
institutions as the V&A, Tate Modern, English Heritage and the National Gallery.  

Participating prisoners are able to earn a salary from sales of goods produced 
which is then saved and kept for their release.  

 

2. The project funded:   
The Trust’s grant is towards the salary of the Studio Manager at HMP Wandsworth.  

The post was established to help expand the classes and increase the number of 

prisoners able to participate.  We visited when a class was underway and we were 

able to talk freely to the volunteers and prisoners.  The prisoners are able to 

continue their needlework during the long hours they spend in their cells. 
 

3. Work delivered to date:   

The project funded by Trust is approaching the end of its second year.  During the 

first year, it worked with prisoners from the Vulnerable Prisoner Unit.  A change in 

policy whereby these prisoners were re-located to different prisons around the 

country during the year, meant that the increased number of prisoners worked 

with at the beginning of the year, dipped towards the end of the year.  During year 

2, FCW has been working with prisoners from the main wing and the numbers have 

increased again during the year. 

 
 

4. Difference made: 

The prisoners we spoke to were very enthusiastic about the project.  None of them 

had stitched before starting the classes but the quality of their work was most Page 235



impressive.  They clearly felt a great sense of pride and achievement.  A couple of 

them talked about the calming effect of stitching and how needlework provided 

them with something useful to do when in their cells. One of them was working on 

a piece commissioned by the Trust - a wall hanging with an embroidered City of 

London Corporation crest. 

 

During 2011, FCW commissioned an independent evaluation of 22 of the prisoners 

with whom it had worked, including 5 from Wandsworth Prison.  Those interviewed 

reported increased self-esteem and a greater sense of self-worth, whilst those with 

mental health problems spoke of the therapeutic and calming benefits. 

 

As well as teaching the prisoners with the technical skills to stitch, involvement in 

the project also teaches them ‘soft’ skills such as teamwork, co-operation and 

perseverance – all useful and transferrable in the workplace.  In the longer term, 

FCW plans to build links with external employers and help those prisoners nearing 

the end of their sentence into paid employment upon their release. 

 
 

5. Grants Administration:  
The Trust’s grant is clearly shown as a restricted fund in FCW’s audited accounts 

for the year ending 31st December 2011.  December 2012 accounts will be 
available in the summer of this year. 

 

The first year’s monitoring report was of a good standard with the information 

clearly presented.  FCW were asked to provide more feedback from the prisoners 
about how they perceived the difference the project had made to them in their 

next report which is due in March 2013. 
 
 
 

6. Concluding comments: 
FCW is an impressive organisation, employing inspirational staff and volunteers.  

The work produced by serving prisoners is of a very high standard and attracts a 
wide range of commissions.  Participation in the project connects prisoners to wider 

society whilst teaching them valuable skills.  It also enables them to support their 

families with the money they earn.  

 
 

 

Page 236



Committee: Date: 

City Bridge Trust Committee 18 April 2013 

Subject:  

Expansion of City Careers Open House programme 
Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer  

Director of Economic Development  

For Decision 

 

Summary 

1. Raising aspirations of young people is a central element of the City 
Corporation’s work to support communities in neighbouring boroughs. A key 
part of that work is the City Careers Open House programme which brings 
around 1,000 young people into the City each year, facilitating taster visits to 
City businesses to demystify the world of work and raise awareness, in a 
practical context, of routes into employment. 
 

2. In response to initial discussions at the Resource Allocation Sub-Committee 
Away Day in July 2012, and input from third parties confirming the value of 
this activity to local communities, the Economic Development Office is 
exploring ways of expanding City Careers Open House.  
 

3. This expansion would involve providing capacity to extend the reach of the 
programme from the current 26 secondary schools per year (950 students) to 
all 88 schools in the seven neighbouring boroughs (2,640 students) in each 
of the academic years 2013/14 and 2014/15.  

 
4. Over the same time period, the expansion would allow the pilot primary 
school element to extend from the current 13 schools per year to 91 per year 
(of the total of around 350 in the seven neighbouring boroughs).  
 

5. The delivery body for both elements would be The Brokerage Citylink, a 
registered charity. 

 
6. The costs of the proposed expansion would be £267,900 with a suggested 
budget of £12,100 to cover materials, other related costs and a contingency, 
this gives a grand total of £280,000. 

 

Recommendation 

That you approve a grant of £280,000 for the costs of expanding the City 
Careers Open House programme subject to a satisfactory financial assessment 
of the grant recipient by the Chamberlain. The grant is conditional on the Policy 
& Resources Committee approving this approach and agreeing to an uplift of 
£280,000 to the City Bridge Trust grants budget for 2013/14, to be met from the 
revenue surplus in Bridge House Estates. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 237



Main Report 

 
Background 

 
1. The City Careers Open House programme provides aspiration-raising half-

day taster visits to City businesses for groups of school students within the 
City’s neighbouring boroughs. It is delivered on the City Corporation’s behalf 
by third party organisations and forms a key part of work to support 
communities across wider London. 

 

2. Since its inception in 2006, the programme has introduced 6,500+ young 
people (years 8-10 i.e. 12-14 year olds) in secondary schools in neighbouring 
boroughs to the world of work, working with 50 schools, and arranging visits to 
some 30 businesses. In addition to this and in response to demand, a pilot 
component of the programme has recently focused successfully on young 
people in the final year of primary school (and parents). 

 

3. The programme is a practical example of facilitating meaningful employer 
contacts for young people at a pivotal point in their education. It responds to 
the increasing body of evidence suggesting a positive relationship between 
the number of employer contacts that a young person experiences during 
their school career and their confidence (at 19-24) in progression towards 
ultimate career goals, the likelihood of whether (at 19-24) they are NEET1 or 
non-NEET and future earnings2. 

 
Current Position 

 
4. The City Corporation wishes to enhance its efforts to support wider London. 

This proposal complements the employability initiative to be delivered through 
Central London Forward; the ‘Youth Offer’ grants to all London boroughs to 
help ‘NEET’s into work; and the £1m Growing Localities horticultural work-
training programme. There is scope to boost City Careers Open House, led by 
the Economic Development Office, to raise aspirations among young people 
in the seven immediately neighbouring boroughs and, in time, to open up the 
City to diverse new talent. 

 

5. City Careers Open House could lend itself well to increased volumes, not 
least as there is clear unmet demand from schools. The main limiting factor 
would be the number of City businesses prepared to host visits. 

 

6. This work is widely considered by third parties as a fundamental part of the 
City Corporation’s support for its neighbouring communities. Indeed, the 

                                           
1
 NEET = Not in Education, Employment or Training.  
2
 It’s who you meet: why employer contacts at school make a difference to the employment prospects 

of young adults, Education and Employers Taskforce, June 2012. 

Page 238



Mayor of Hackney, for example, has stated that one of the single most 
important offers the City Corporation could make to Hackney would be to 
provide an insight into City businesses for more local young people including 
at younger age groups. 
 

7. The project, currently mid-way through an existing contract, which started in 
April 2012 and is funded by ‘Section 106’ planning gain monies, is delivered 
through third party organisations. Both contracts run for the remainder of the 
2012/13 academic year and for the full 2013/14 academic year. 

 

8. This report sets out costs associated with scaling up the programme 
substantially, in the first instance in the academic year 2013/14, 
supplementing the current contracts, which will run to completion. It also 
outlines the total costs for running the programme at this enhanced scale for 
the academic year 2014/15, beyond the end of the current contracts. It is 
proposed that the Brokerage Citylink, a registered charity and current delivery 
body for the secondary school programme, delivers the enhanced element of 
both the primary and secondary school parts of the programme. 

 

9. The report proposes that these costs be met by way of an uplift to the City 
Bridge Trust grants budget to be met from the revenue surplus in Bridge 
House Estates. This would be additional to the City Bridge Trust’s grants 
budgets for 2013/14 and the approval of the Policy & Resources Committee 
will be sought. Existing ‘Section 106’ monies are already earmarked to 
continue levels of activity in existing programmes. From April 2014 there is 
also some uncertainty, in view of changes to the planning gain regime, around 
the availability of such funds and the City Corporation’s freedom to allocate 
them. The proposal to scale up the City Careers Open House programme by 
way of an uplift to the City Bridge Trust grants budget responds to the City 
Corporation’s wish to increase its support to London’s communities beyond 
levels permitted by existing budgets.  

 

Proposals 

 
10. With additional funding of £280,000, both elements of City Careers Open 

House could be enhanced substantially in the 2013/14 academic year and 

sustained in 2014/15. 

  

a. Secondary schools: ALL 88 secondary schools in the City’s seven 

neighbouring boroughs would be offered a visit, potentially increasing 

the number of young people taking part from the planned 9603 in 

2013/14 to 2,6404. 

                                           
3
 26 visits with an average of 37 students per visit = 962 students.  

4
 88 visits with an average of 30 students per visit, the lower number per visit taking account of likely space 

constraints within City businesses’ premises. 

Page 239



b. Primary schools: A total of 70 primary schools in neighbouring 

boroughs (more than a fifth of the total of 347) to take part (10 per 

borough), an increase of 57 from the current 13 planned visits in the 

2013/14 element of the pilot, potentially increasing the number of 

young people taking part in that period from 1955 to 1,4006.  

 
Costings 

 

2013/2014 £ 
Secondary schools (additional 62 visits at £967 each) 60,000 

Primary schools (additional 57 visits at £780 per visit)  44,500 

2014/2015  
Secondary schools (additional 88 visits at £967 each) 85,100 

Primary schools (additional 70 visits at £780 each) 54,600 

General  

Set-up costs covering e.g. staff time to build and expand 
relationships with schools and City businesses. 

23,700 

Materials/Contingency (for any unforeseen but relevant 
additional costs above and beyond running of the visits e.g. 
transport, learning resources, evaluation support) 

12,100 

TOTAL £280,000 
 
 

11. The Brokerage Citylink, the delivery organisation, is satisfied that the 
increased level of activity outlined above is achievable, both in terms of the in-
kind support required by City businesses and the input required from schools 
to allow young people to benefit from the programme in increased numbers. 

 

12. The Brokerage Citylink was appointed to deliver the secondary school 
element of the current City Careers Open House contract following a rigorous 
competitive tender exercise, assessing price and quality of the services.  

 
Corporate & Strategic Implications 

 
13. This proposal meets Government and Mayoral priorities and supports:  

• the Community Strategy themes: “is competitive and promotes 
opportunity”; “supports our communities” and “is safer and stronger”.  

• the Corporate Plan objective of providing “valued services to London 
and the nation”, and key policy priority to “be a good neighbour”.  

• priorities within the business plans of the City Bridge Trust and the 
Economic Development Office.     

                                           
5
 13 visits with an average of 15 students. 

6
 70 visits with an average of 20 students. 

Page 240



14. An equalities impact assessment has been undertaken concluding that the 
proposed sponsorship would not have an adverse impact on equalities. 

Implications 

 
15. The Comptroller and City Solicitor has advised that grants for charitable 

purposes associated with addressing employablity made to organisations 
which meet the criteria for funding by City Bridge Trust may be regarded as 
within the Guidelines and the purposes of the Charitable Scheme. 

Conclusion 

 
16. The proposed expansion of the City Careers Open House programme is a 

powerful way of raising the aspirations of substantial numbers of young 
people in London. It builds on an existing example of good practice and, 
through demystifying the City and employment opportunities available for local 
young people, could make a valuable contribution to their longer term 
employability.  

 
 
 
 
 
Clare Thomas 
Chief Grants Officer 
T: 020 7332 3713 
E: clare.thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk  

Page 241



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee(s): Date(s): 

The City Bridge Trust 18 April 2013 

 

Subject: 

City Bridge Trust Business Plan 2013-16 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Grants Officer 

For Decision 

 

 
Summary  

 
This report introduces the new City Bridge Trust business plan. 
 

Recommendation 
 

That Members approve the Business Plan 2013-16 as circulated. 

 

Main Report 

The City Bridge Trust Business Plan 2013-16 has been circulated to 
Members as a separate document from your main bundle of papers. 

 
The format of the report is very similar to those you have approved in 

past years and contains all of the City of London Corporation required 

elements. The plan includes both headline information and detailed 

workplans, incorporating the Trust’s eight key performance indicators.  In 

particular this year the plan highlights the work on corporate philanthropy 

and social investment strategies both of which are developing an 

increasing profile within the Trust’s overall portfolio of work. 

 

It has been observed in the past that the CBT business plan is a longer 

document than is produced by some other parts of the City Corporation.  

However it has proved helpful in briefing new staff, grants committee 

members and others to use the business plan as a single point of 

information about the Trust, including a longer narrative about the way 

that the Trust works. 

 

Recommendation 
 

That Members approve the Business Plan 2013-16 as circulated. 
 
Contact: 

Clare Thomas, Chief Grants Officer 
020 7332 3713   clare.thomas@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
Report written: 26/03/2013 

Agenda Item 10

Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 245

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 246

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 15

Page 247

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 250

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding Items
	Item 4(1) Outstanding actions - Annex

	5 Progress Report and Events
	Item 5(A) Events Table FINAL

	7a Grant Recommendations - Introductory paper
	7b Grant Recommendations and Assessments
	Item 7(B2) Grant Recommendations and Assessments (Annexes 1 - 17)

	7c Grants Recommended for Rejection
	Item 7(C1) Summary of Recommendations for Rejection

	8a Withdrawn and Lapsed Applications
	8b Variations to Grants
	8c Grants Approved under Delegated Authority
	8d Reports on Monitoring Visits
	Item 8(D2) Monitoring visit report - Fine Cell Work

	9 Expansion of City Careers Open House programme
	10 City Bridge Trust Business Plan 2013-16
	14 Non-Public Minutes
	15 Quinquennial review - consultation findings

